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Brown: Well, ah folks, my name is Steve Brown to the music world. My real name is Ted Brown,
I was born and raised in New Orleans, Louisiana. My parents had a musiecal background, and I
guess my brother and I we were talented in that respect. We began playing early in our teens
and ah 1 guess ah ah just after our father and mother's death we were quite young and we fooled
‘ around with different tvpes of musical instruments and ah gradually ah decided to ah stay on on
instrument. Trombone was my brother's and ah bass fiddle was mine. And ah we ah played around
New Orleans for years in all the best places in the city and we had up to 1913 when I left them
one of the best bands in the city. I left to follow my trade as sheet.metal worker and pro-
ceeded to Jackson, Louisiana, in the East Louisiana State Hospital. After being there about
three years, I married and ah came back to New Orleans for a little while and proceeded to ah
Natchitoches, Louisiana, where I opened up a business of my own. I remained there for about
three years, and ah came back into the music field; that was in 1920, I arrived in Chicago an
to my surprise no one was using bass fiddles. Everyone had tubas in their orchestras and it
seemed to be impossible for me to get a jobs However, I continued to bother the best booker
considered in Chicago at that time, Cope Harvey, and succeeded in getting a job date ah at the
Blackstone Hotels In order to get more work I done everything I could to attract attention N
and succeeded in havingtgzople gather around the band and ah refrain from dancing until we're
finished playing. I ah had no trouble from there after, the different contractors offered me
jobs and in a short time I had all the work that I could do in Chicago. I remained there for
oh up until 1926 and ah left to join the Zﬁéqﬁ? Goldkette orchestra in Detroit., I signed a
contract with Goldkette for five years and remained with him during that entire timg, until the
band broke up in New York and then I joined [féu£7 Whiteman. Ah I may say that ah up until the
time I reached Chicago I never knew a note in music. I've never taken a lesson. And that when
I was offered jobs in larger.bands it'was necessary for me to learn how to read, So I had tn
~put my mind out in reading, And I learned how to read good enough in which to cover different
types of work in the orchestral field. And ah when I joined Whiteman the misic was a 1little
different from me. It was ah ah a little symphonic in conjunction with rhythmically played

pieces, and ah that seemed to worry me quite a bit and I never enjoyed myself playing as much

- as I did with the Goldkette outfit because we played practically . everything rhythmically, Only
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Brown: when we played shows would be would it be considered ah differently you‘knou, I mean,
ah ballads aﬁd things like that, that we had to play. But ah I played and it was satisfactory
all right, I got by with ah the type of music that was put before me and ah we were, Whiteman
was offered a contract to ah terminate his ah recordings with the VictofjfpeOple and go over tc
the Columbia. And they in turn were going to ah send the band around the world, visit in everj
principal city and ah Paul had told me that he was willing to pay my wife'!s fare along with his
orchestra but that I'd have to leave the children on this side. I consulted my wife about it
and ah she felt that if anything happened td the children while she was across water why ah
she'd never forgive herself and ah sﬁe urged me to go ahead and she'd remain on this side,
Well I wasn't feeling any too good at that particular time, so I decided to stay here, too, anc
ah told Paul about it. Well the depression was setting in at that-this particular time and the
trip around the world was canceled for Paul. And Paul had to cut down his orchestra consider-
ably. There was quite a numbers of boys left when I left--Tommy Dorsey, Jimmy Dorsey, a 1ittle
later [ﬁenpx? Busse and quite a lotof well known boys left the orchestra. And then Paul during
the depression days had to resort to cheaper musicians, you know. And he got by the best way L
could at that particular time, I returned to Detroit and played for Jean Coldkette again. And
then ah he sent me down to Chicago to start his new orchestra, he was starting a new orchestra
called the WGN orchestra directed by Earl Stokes. Stokes, an accordian player. And ah I didn!?
like the band and ah so I told Jean Goldkette to put someone else in my place that I was going
down to New Orleans and ah that I'd ah return back to Detroit later on if he had anything for n
to do, well I, I begun to play for him again. So that WON Bandcontinued for awhile and made
some records. Ah however they didn't have any market for that type of a orchestra and it soon
disbanded. I joined another unit of Goldkette's called The Vagabondé and traveled around the
country a little bit for them, although we didn't make any records. I didn't make sy records
with the Vagabonds, And ah I went.down as far as San Antone, Texas.and ah returned with them,
and they made a trip later up East. And I failed to go with them. I thought I'd remain loecall
and stay in Detroit. At that particular time, I wasn't feeling so good, and not knowing what
was the matter with me I soon found out that'it was arthritis that I had and ah ss the weeks an

months grew why I began to be crippled more and more until I had to confine myself indoors for
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Brown: ah couple years or so. And ah after the art-attack of arthritis subsided for a little
bit, I tried to play music a little but it didn't satisfy me and I ah later on looked for othe
types of work to do, such as salesmanship, and later on I took an examination for (?) étéém
engineerings And ah I haven't ah played since, since then. Jhat was about ah let's seé,'I
been out of the mggic field now for about ten or twelve years and ah up to that time why I
played with different organizations in Chicago when I arrived in Chicago in 1920 I played with
a lot of small Dixieland groups and ah later larger orchestras such as the Friar's Inn Band
[ﬁew Orleans Rhythm King§7'and then later with the Midway Garden Orchestra which was when I .
started to ah learn how to read. And azh up to that time, of. course, as I said Before, I never
knew a thing about music and ah had no idea what it was all about until I went upjnorth. But
shut it off. I don't know what to say. (machine is shut off)

Allen: Let's go, let's start all over again, and I'1l ask you a question. What date were you
born and where?

Brown: I was born in January 13, 1890 in New Orleans.

Allen: And your

Brown: And there was five of us born in New Orleans here. We were all christened in practi-
cally the same church, Father Lambert's Church,

Allen: That's a Catholic Church.

Brown: Yeah, Father ah Cath folic/. . o « o

Brown's sister: It was Fathef Lambert!s then

Brown: Father Lambert, at that particular time,

Brown's sister: It's Oyr Lady of Good Counsel Church now.

Russell: Lady of Good Counselﬁ/

Brown's sister: Yes |

Brown: Now, yeah.

Allen: I see,

Brown: Howéver, my father was a Catholic, my mother was a Pfotestant, so later on my mother
brought us into the Protestant fgith, howevef my brother, Tom, who has just passed away, why
he was buried in a Catholic faiths, he was, his wife is Catholic, so she evidently had him

returned back to the church,
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Allen: uh<huh.

Brownt But anyway in those particular days, we were in poor circumstances so we were very
young when my mother passed away, my father passed away about|what was it Louise, a year or
two before my mother, huh?

" Brown's sister: A year and ten months,

Brown: A year and ten months before my mother passed away. And ah so we were quite small, I
was twelve and Tom was fourteen and in those days why we were in poor circumstances, and we had
to ah work in the day and try to get a little education in the night by attending night school,
And ah=-

Brown's sister: Went to school, Sophie Wfight school.

Brown: Well, yes, I attended Sophie Wright school during the night. But none of us received
any too much education.

Allen: Yeahe And did your mother and father play music?

Brown: Yes, My father was ah, had a little band of his own well not of his own, but he played
in the band, I think he played different string instruments, violin and different ones of
them would get together and they played different affairs and my father was ah quite active in
dramatics of different kinds and his mother, my grandmother, on the Brown side was a piano
teacher. And my grandmother on my mother's side also knew how to play pieno so we were gifted
in that respect see that's the reason we were able to pick up instruments and learn how to play
Yem quickly.

Allen: Well, now, would your father be a faker or did he read music or—-—?VCould he fake?
Brown: Nos I think he played by ear. I think he played by ear.

Allen: Well, would he play what they call jazz now, Dixieland jazz?

Brown: Well, no. At that particular time there were lancers, and mazookas [ﬁazurkg§7’ and
schottische and reels, and there were no such thing as ah as ragtime music at that particular
timeo |

Allen: Oh, I see.

Brown: Ah, it came, ragtime came into effeét a little after that around the time when we was

starting to play. Ah that Stale Bread BandllEmile August LaCoume Sqi? was around there, I used

to go around when I was a kid to hear him playe. And we had what we call lawn parties given
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Brown: partically every neighborhood around the city in those daysf Particularly in the ah
Negro section thgy*d have tarpaulins spread over the yard and the back and the Negro bands woﬂid
play and as kids we'd go listen at 'em, you knoﬁ what I mean. Hear 'em play all types of tunes.
But they didn't have what we call or considered the Dixieland ¢ombination, see, and some of
those bands went to New York and Chicago at different times and played, but their type of music
wasn't considered a jazz type of a Dixieland combination. They had violins and flutes and thiné
like that in their orchestras. And a real Dixieland combination consisted of five pleces,
mainly, sometimes they put six, sometimes tpey‘put seven or eight pieces,

Allen: Well, what instruments were those?

Brown: Huh? ”

Allen: What instruments were those?

Brown: The main instruments was, the main five, ah five instruments were cornet, trombone,
cornet, ah drums, and we didn't have a piano in those days. We had guitar, felloﬁs, a good
many guitar players played a twelve string guitar to give enough body and rhythm to be heard.
In so many lit---the places they didn't have. a piano for the musicians to play.

Allen: What were the horns, I didn't get the horns straight?

Brown: Cornety, trombone and clérinet, and then we used bass, guitar, and drums,

Allen: Did they add different instruments later? . |

Brown: Later on, after they got up north, why they had to have piano,

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brown: Guitar wasn't loud enough or somethin', And everybody had to have it, have a piano
with all the bands, so, so the boys had to send down here and get different piano players until
they got the right one. I think /Henry/ Ragas, Ragas was with the Dixieland, wasn't he?
Russell: Yeah, '

Allen: Did they use any of these homemade instruments with those groups or would they use all
regular instruments?

Brown: Oh, at that particular timg, they were, these boys had all battered~up instruments, you
knowy, I mean, they bought "em, the majority of 'em bought them second handed, they couldn't

afford to buy the new ones they were too expensive for them. And ah later on as they played

and made. nlaved a lot of Jjobs. why they got new instruments. But ah. thev were nretiv high in
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Brown: those days. Thateah--the instruments weren't so plentiful as they are today and when-
ever we got an old battered up instrument we tried to repair it the best way we could and learn
how to play something on it. Néﬂ we had what we called ah ah [thnqi7 Fisher's Band around New
Orleans ah one of the boys ah ah by the name of Schilling, did, you meet him yet?

" Russell: Happy?

Allen: TYeah,

Russell: Happy Schilling, yes.

Brown: He's an old fellow now, isn't he?

Russell: Played trombone?

Brown: Yesy that's right,

Russell: That's the one, yeah.

BrOWnr Well, he's largely responsible for us playing--Tem and I, we decided to go batching at
one time, and we rented a house and we furnished it and Hap Schilling used to come over there
and ask permission at different times to leave a lot of instruments overlthere. Trombone, tubaé
clarinets, and you know, different band instruments, well we were tickled to death to let them
leave it over there, because Tom and I used to ah fool around with them during the/day and
before we knew it, we knew how to play a lot of %em. See, we just out of curiosity we just
wanted to see if we could play them. We applied ourself enough, and sure enough, we learn how
to play. I played a little bit on the clarinet, the cornet, trombone, tubas, things like that,
And Tom did the same thing. Well, Tom seemed to ah love trombone, and I loved the bass more
than I loved any other instrument. And we used to sit down at the piano you know, and ah play,
the, learn to play a num--ah, few numbers on piano., And ah, well we liked all instruments but
still the bass seemed to appeal to me. Seemed like I loved that instrument. And Tom seemed to
love the trombone more than any other instrument too so ah we ah we start playing so well, that
we attracted attentionand people start hiring us for different dances,

Russell: No lessons uh--?

Brown: No lessons on anything. Well, in fact, we ha? a trumpet piayer Ray Lopez he played.the
ah his cornet as I call it, because it was short see,lleft handed. Instead of right handed
fingering., He'd put his left hand over the horn and finger it that way--left handed. Well, ah

that was his style of playing. And he wasn'+ taught. The only one that knew how to ah read a
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Brown: few notes was Gussie Mueller. And he could only read the ah the lead part on top of a
piano parte |

Russell: uh=huh

Brown: And he'd ah play that over and we, we'd catch it just that quick, see, And we'd form
our own harmony and rhythm to it. And ah that's the way we learned our numbers,

Allen: Now what was your first instrument that you took up? Your very first one?

Brown: Oh, I ah strummed on a guitar and ah flute and harmonica, I think I ah played harmonica
first, jew's harp and flutes and things like that when‘a kide Then later on I got a hold of a
guitar, I think my father's guitar was laying around the house, we learned how to play, make
all the changes, and we called different bﬁys in and we teach them the changes, ybu know, what
I mean. -

Russell: Yeah

Brown: And ah had them to play with us. So before long we had a little band, and then we got
a little larger band and then as we became known we sta;t playing‘at different affairs,
Russell: How old were you then? '

Brcwn: Well, as the time go along, I guess ah I started at twelve so I must have been around
15 or so., When we were really making headway, and attracting attention., And ah so Wwe, We were
offered a job to play in the carnival parade, for the Garden District Carnival Club, They said
if you can get ahold of a brass band and play as good as you do with your orchestra, why we'll
give you the job in carnival. Mardi Gres/ So we ah agreed to that. Well, Tom and.I, we were
worried about gettin' uniforms to have for the men to play. So we joined the ah ah state
militia and we asked the Captain to loan us the blue uniforms, the blue coats you know and we
got enough for the ah entire men, ten men in the brass band. And evefyone had to get white
pants, see, And we had tan shoes and leggbﬁs. And the ah parading down the street we had the
ah name of the band on top, see, that covered the the company's ensignia on there, see,
Russell: TYeah,. |

Brown: We took off the cross guns, see, so we looked like we had band uniforms. Well the club
at that particular year won first prize. And in the paper, they mentioned the how wonderful

the band looked, See, in the paper. So Tom didn't remember that, so I felt like goinZ into

the libraries and locking over the papers on that particvlar date and see if I could get the
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played. And the club won first prize and we had quite a nice mention about the band and how
well we played.

_ Russell: About how old were you for that parade then? i
\ ‘Brown: Oh, I guess around 15 or 16 years of age.
Allen{ Well, we could have found that in the paper, in the library, we'll dolthat.
Russell: 1905 or 106

Brown: I was thinkin' about Jookin', I wanted ah, I wanted Tom to go down with me and I could
look over the paper in that particular year,
Russell: We'll look it up, we'll find ity I know,
Allen: It might take a while, but we'll do it,
Brown: Well, yes, but anyway, that ah that was our first brass band job. Then we had she-
became acquainted with Jack Laine. Jack Laine, more or less, had brass bands. He didn't fool
around with orchestras much, he had a big brass band, he was the bass drummer, himself, And
ah, whenever he had orchestra jobs, he'd gave us a lot of orchestra jobs, you know. But a lot,
a great many times, I'd play with Jack Laine in his band and he'd want me to play tuba for him
and Tom would be hired in different musicians. We all worked along with different others, but
we got so towards last that we wanted, we were unable to play with anyone, we had enough jobs
to keep us busy. In fact some of the boys quit their work. We had Ray Lopez, the trumpet
player, why he was playing enough to justify him in ah qutting work. He was making enough
money just as was, he wanted to s}eep in the daytimé.

Russell: Well, a question about Lopez, was he really left-handed in everything he did, did he
| write left-handed, and eat left-handed, or just play the trumpet that way?
Brown: That I don't remember.
Russell: You don't remember.

Brown: I could ask him, but I don't remember whether he wrote left-handed or
Allen: Now, where, where is he now, in Califprnia?

Brown: He's in California. He and Gussie Meuller are in California,

~Allen: Do you know where they live, in what part?

Brecwn: Yes, I have the address,.
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Kllen: Oh, we'd like to get that. _

Russell: Cause you know Niek LaRocca and Sharkey @onan_g? both fingered with the left hand.
Brown: Oh, by the way, Gussie Meuller's daughter is writing his story,
Allen: Ohy that's wonderful. _,
Brown:- And ah she is writing a story and I don't know whether it is Supposed to be published
pretiy soon, and I think ah for my understanding, they put me in the band., And I says, well I
wasn't in the band when you fellows went up there. Well, Ray says you were in the band origin-
ally. So we put your name in the band. So they left Loyocano out. So I says, no, that i.;sn't
fair, Loyocano was with the band when they wentup there, and I didn't have a thing to do with
the band when you fellers wentup there, I'& already éuit. ' ? ? night, and when I
came back into the fi.eld,' of course, all this had been pioneered but they hadn't had anyone to
play bass, like I did, see, rNow for instance, when we were playing, when we were 'playing in
New Orleans, we played for all the prize fights. In those days, we played between each round,
Keep the fans satisfied and then before the fights we'd play and play and have the crowds
applauding and put 'em in a good: spirit, see. And to advert,ise_ the fight we stand on different
corners, or go on the truck and play, so I was standing in the, on Royal Street around Iberville
[§t37 or one of the streets down there, in the business section, and many times when we were
playlng down there, a lot of men would poke their head over my shoulders and be watching me ‘
while I was playing, and some of them would say, "My God, I've been traveling all around, but I
never heard anybody play a bass like that." And to me I thought they were just ceriticizing me,
you know what I meany I just figured that they were Just thinkdng that I couldn't play, Well, i
sounded good to me, so I didn't care,

Russell: Yeah

Brown: And up, for a long time, my, I thought the same thing, even when the people applauded
me up north, I just figured that they they were just, didn't mean it, you know, and even when
the boys were raving about how well I played, and they'd come pat me on the back, and things
like that, I still |

Russell: Didn't know .

Brown: thought thgy was joshing me, you see., And ah this Russ Morgan, he wrote an article some

time back in the ghe~--oh Post, he'd write practically everything about me and how when I first
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Brown: came there and how other people would come around the band stand and Steve thought the
people was just putting him on and things like that, you know. But it was really a fact,
Russell: But tell mey, where were those fights, where did they have them?

. Brown: Right here in New Orleans, New Orleans Athletic Club,

Russell: About where? I don't know where.

Brown: Well this one, seemed to be downtown, the stadium was ah seemed to have been on
Brown's sister: Same place that it is now, or did they tear it down?

Brown: Noy they must have torn it down,

Allen: They have a new one now,

Brown's Sister: Yes, The Coliseum, that's where

Brown: Well that's where, no, no, this was downtown, just ah about two or three blocks below
Canal Street in the middle of the block at one place, I think it must hawe been Royal and the
Royal and somethin' on the, on the downtown side,

Russell: Chartres, sure, I know now.

Brown: It was some old‘place they had, Athletic Club, or rather the Pavillion was there.,
Russell: Oh, yeah, where the court house is now, I think, or was,

Brown: Maybe so,

Russell: Yeah,

81len: It would either bz Royal and Ghartres or Royal and Bourbon, one of the two.

Russell: About St. Louis Street along in theree--Contiewee-

4Allen: Well, which Loyocano was itewe==

Brown; Well, I could find out the correct address,

Russell: I knowy I can check on that now. I know what you mean, I think,

Brown: Well, anyway, ah the ﬁeople wou}d stand around and listen at the band, particularly
these strangers, ah out-of-town people, they'd come arocund and oh-~they'd just holler, you
know, I mean, they didn't hear that type of music, you know, so I guess it was that ah ah kind
of music Tom was playing at the Yacht Club or someplace where Frisco, the dancer, was, that ah

up :
caused Frisco to go back to New York to ah tell ah the people in Lamb's Cafe zﬁn Chicagé? about

tge band he heard down in New Orleans. But anyway, we played all the ah Yacht Clubs in the eh
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Brown: gymninistic clubs and we played for ah all the best people in New Orleans at that
particular time, up until the time I left them, and we were rated very highly by all the public
in geperal as being a very good band. One of the best bands down in‘New Orleans., But ah they
never ah the newspapers never did give us write-ups like they--do today. They mention a lot
about the musicians and bands, but in those days, they just said, "The band had, maybe they may
say, had a good orchestra,” you know what I mean, or something like that, but generally the
bandfs name and that is about all it was.

Allen: Well which Loyocano was it that you mentioned was it ah

Brown: Arnold Loyocano, he went

81len: Arnold, huh?

Brown: He went up to, ah with Tom

Allen: Oh, I see.

Brown: He took my place when I left, when I left the band in 1913 he toog my place and played
from then on. Ah he played in Chicago and then went to New York with 'em., And ah the going
got pretty rough in New York, I understand, from Tom and them, and ah Loyocano and ah [Billy/
Lambert, and ah /Tarry/ Shields, I think beat it out of New York. |
Ryssell: One other question----what did you call that band down here, what.%as the name of it?
Brown: Wéll, we ah, we ah call it just ah "Brown's Band",

Russell: "Brown'!s Band",.

Brown: An d sometimes some people would ca=--put across on the streamer at picnics that we
played "Brown's Ragtime Bgnd." You see,

Russell: uh-huh.

Brown: And zh that's all, we was just known as "Brown's Band"---

Russell: Who was the leader?

Brown: Huh?

Russell: Who was the 1eaderf

Brown: Well, we called Ray Lopez the leader. Tom was the manager; I was nobody for that matte:
but I go around and book the band. I was a bboker and I'd keep the boys working cause in the

~ daytime I'd watch all the papers, every affair that was being given, you know, I'd go see the

chairman of the ccriittce and ah sell him on the idea of the band, see? And tell him who we
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Erown: played for and after I told him who we played for and had them to verify my statement
why I'd get the job very easy, because we did have a good band. And I'm acquainted with all
the musicians that are well known down in New Orleans at that particular time,

Russell: What pieces did you play then? Do you remember some of the nunbers?

-Brownz We played the same pieces that are played today, only they all have different names, sex
we used to call "Meatballs", and "Snot", "No.2" (laughter). Ve'd make up some of these numbers
and we'd just give 'em a name--that way, see, just joking, and like ah a great many times one
of the fellas would start off and we'd ask what we gonna play, and he's say, "Oh, that's all
right, just follow me." So, if it sounded good, hefd try to repeat the same thing, you know,
and maybe we'd play it different each time, and gradually it would simmer down into one type
of number. So, in those days, Zﬁiqﬁ? LaRocca used to come up before he could play trumpet and
he used to sit up along side of Ray Lopez on Marengo and Magazine. We used to play up there,
and he used to learn how to play the same notes that Raymond Lopez played. And ah he soon
learned how to play the numbers, and Eddie Edwards used to play fiddle at first, see. And
his, his father bought him a trombone, and ah he told me, he says take Eddie around and with
you, and he says, let Eddie sit in and learn how to play his trombone. So, I took Eddie around
with me, and pretty soon, Eddie started picking up on his trombone, see, and ah so that's how
Eddie Edwards started on his trombone. But they couldn't play before, we were playing long
before LaRocca and Edwards were playing. Shields was just ah well he was a pretty good
élariﬁet player but he was nothing in comparison to Gussie Mueller, see. And ah he couldn't
play as many numbers as Gussie Meuller. You can shut that off now. | '
Russell: Well, the tape is just about over now,

Allen: It's just about over,

Russell: Ah, I was gonna ask, what was number two, what was that tune like? Remember, the
one you calledsseso? -

Brown: "No. 2" was "Tiger Rag"

Russell: That was "Tiger Rag"

Allen: Whatt!s the name of "Meatballs"?

Brown: Ah, I think that was Dixieland Ope-Step", I don't know now what the boys up there give
it, |
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Allent Oh, yeah.

Brown: Names again, I think it was "Dixieland Ope=Step".

Russell: Okay, this is the end of this ( ) now.

END OF REEL I, April 22, 1958
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Russell: Now, you were talking about Eddie Edwards and he was smart in organizing, what was it?
Brown: Well, ah, he knew the trouble that Tom had in Chicago, see, and Tom was up there, the
band was going so good, and stiracted =o much atlenticn lhat the ah, the band leaders would try
to break up Tom's band by trying to offer one man a little bit more money.

" Pussell: Yeah

Brown: See. And some of them would quit Tome And Tom would come back to New Orleans and get
someone else, that's the way it was, so in order to avoid that trouble, Eddie Edwards, incor-
.porated the bandy see. And neither one of them could leave. ' So they had to stay together as
one uﬁit. That saved the dey for the Dixieland Band, And if Tom had did something like that,
it'd been alirighto But ah he could have taken advantage of all the recordings, but up until
that time, they weren't recording so much, in fact théy didn't want ahything to do with hot
music much, you Jnow ah. And jazz as you call it, everything was new to them ah later on after
the Dixieland Band commenced to do so well and have so much Success why they had a contract to
record. And that's why they put all these numbers when they found out they wasn't copyrighted
why they'ah took a éopyright on these numbers and I don't blame Tem, % would have done the same
things I wouldn't, I donit feel sore against any of the boys for (any of) those numbers, I
would have did the same thing if I knew a number wasn't copyrighted I'de--

Allen: Somebody just gét it up north who didn't deserve any of the credit,

Brown: Huh?

Allen: Somebody up north would just have gotten it, who didn't deserve any of the credit,
Brown: Why certainly. If it hadn't been, I'd rather see a boy from down here get it,

Allen: I wanted to ask you, I didn't understand somethin' quite-=-no one has ever explained
this to me fully, ah what's the difference between ragtime bands and this kind of band and that
kind of band that they had in New Orleans, and the different kind of music up until that time?
Brown: Well, at that particular time, you Seey, We more or 1éss played lances, and schottische,
and mazurka§7 mazookas, and reels, aﬁd things like that, and the two step, and ah now and then
weld put in the little hot numbers, you know what I mean, as we gradually....people were
beginning to wean away from the old-fashioned dancln' to the modern dances, see, And, and, gs

the time went along, why we went into fox-trols, and one-steps, you know what I mean,

Allen: Uh<huh,
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Brown: #nd hesitation waltzes and things like that. And that's how the changes took place.
But up wntile—wer around that time when I was playing, well we still had to play reels when we
were called upon and waltzes and mazookas Zﬁazurka§7 and schottische and along with the ah two
steps. And ah we played a lot of our lively numbers mostly in 2/hth time and ah that's what al
our general ragtime music was. And it's, in my estimation, it's still the same music, it's the
same pieces, that I pléyed when I was in knee pants that they are playing today, all these
Dixieland numbers. And ah it's jgst everyone plays sonething a little different than the othe;
feller, that's all, Oh, it's just a matter of taste, whoever seems to produce something that!:
ah satisfies the public why that's what the people want.

Allen: I wanted to get some dates, too, that'!s another thing. When did you ah go up to
Jackson and Natchitoches?

Brown: Well, I went_to.Jackson in 1913 right after I left the band. And I was employed there
as a sheet metal worker. I made pfactically everything that the institution neéded including
utensils, you see.they, there was no machines to turn out ah turn out er coffee pots and bake
péns and heavy enough gauges, The patients would break them up, so I had to make 'em out of
_heavy gauge. Coffee pots, pots, and kitchen utensils and bake-ﬁans and things like that. Ah
and then besides I kept the eh old buildings in repair and ah done anythings the doctors want
in that particular line...made blood refrigerators and things like that. I stayed there,
remained there for about three years my wife was a seamstress fhereﬁand that's where I got
married. I ah then I came back to New Orleans jus£ for about a year orlless than a year and
then I left to go to Natchitoches, [iqi7 I ah let'!s see, I got married married in 1916 (inside
of) three years I was in Jackson and ah I opened up the business in Natchitoches about the
latter part of 1917 I guess. And ah remained there until 1920, In 1920 I left and ah went
over to Chicago and ah -

Russell: Who asked you to come up there, who was (it) up there?
 Brown: Well ah, Tom urged me to come on up and he ah he gavé'me a few names of friends he has,
that would see that I was taken care of, you know. And ah in facf one of his friends, had a
little band that ah I could get with, but thé job didn't last long and I was running around

there with ah like a chicken with his head cut off. I couldn't understand why I couldn't get
a job around there, you know, Bvervbody snd his brother had a big tuba or I can tell you, it
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Brown: was somethin'! to look at with all the Lights, turning on and off and I Jjust cgncluded
that I had to do the same thing in order to get a job, but, as I told you -- it Just so happened'
that ah booker must have been short one night and he gave me that Jjob in the Blackstone Hotel,
And I never will forget that because it ah was a treat to me to-see the people just standing
‘around the band instead of dancing,

Russell: You used your string bass that night?

Brown: Oh, yeah I was spinning it and riding it and ah I would darn near breaken it in order to,
you know, to create an impression, you know, to get another jobe And from then on, why, I ah I
didn't have any trouble, the bookers the;'wanted me and I had more calls (than enough for)

string bass and I remained in Chicago up until 1926, Sea.

| Russell: Tell me about those lights and the tubss again, where were the lights, inside the tuba?
Brown: Inside the bell, down inside where it couldn't be seen, but the reflection of these
lights would go on and off and it was a beautiful sight there, you see they'd have Sousaphones
more of them, they'd have sousaphones, with these large bells, the larger the bell the bigger the
show, See, and they'd have a large bell for a show and when all these lighfs would go on from a
distance you would look at it, and it was beautiful.

Russell: Yeah, uh-huh.

Brown: And ah

Russell: Were they, were they connected with each valve? Say if you pushed down the first valve
Brown: No, no, no, it was just the same as a Christmas light going on and off See, the switch |
would be down on the floor, see

Russell: I thought maybe it was connected to the valves

Brown: No, this would be hooked on in the back and that would be going timed at different
intervals, the light would go on and off. And it was beautiful but ah to me that grunting sound
of the tuba was-=it wasn't a true bass tone to me, you see. And ah after I started playing and
they heard the recordings why all the band leaders thought the same as I did, because they all
started changing to string bass., But for awhilg, I ﬁad the field all to myself and I traveled

all through the New England coast and those places and when ah when I'd return on my second trip,

I'd see basses seem to appear in different bandstands, you know, as I went along, 4nd then after
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Brown: I made about the third trip or sv, why everybody and his brother had a string bass ong .
and they discarded tubas completely. They'd put them away. And iﬁ a great many bands now,
bringing tubas backla little bit and also banjos. But ah very few it is very few tuba players
that can continue playing smooth tones, you know what I mean. . It depends upoﬁ his stomach
‘and the condition of himself, physically. Ah, but a string bass, you can always get a nice
smooth tone out of it, you knecw. Now I played a different type of bass, I played what they
called 'elapstick bass'!, see. When I first ah when we were playing out at Milneburg and West
End and those places out at all day picnics, one place in particular the drummer failed to

show up., And I had used the bow up until then. I had used the bow, learned to bow (?) the
bow, just bass like, any legitimate bass player would play, and ah this drummer not showing up
left us without any rhythm, so I put the bow down, and slapped the bass, just slapped the
strings against the finger board, which produced an after beat effect which gave it a rhythmic
effect to the band, and the boys all liked it so well they even though after we did get a
drummer why they wanted me to continue. So I continued that way.

Russell: You just slapped the string against the bass and then pluck it o¢n the way out again?
Brown: Thatts right, that's right.

Russell: ? (You hit against the thing and then pulled the string out and it)

Brown: Yeah., Well ah with the aid of the ah finger board, I used to make triple béats, see,
you?ll hear it on "“Dinah" Zﬁith Jean Goldkette, Victor (See Jazz Directopi? see, tge string
will hit the finger board and I'1ll just catch it see, catch it on the bounce see, and it make a
sort of triple effect. And ah that way, it was so pronounced that all the musicians could hear
it seey, and they didn't understand how I did it. In fact, I wasn't able to explain it myself.
And ah so, they liked it that way, and ah they'd never heard anyfhing like that before. _
Russell: Tell us some more about that "Dinah" while you're talking about it that record that
you madeceee'"Dinah",

Brown: Well "Dinah", ah, to me, was the first record that we made. And as that, to me, that
was the first record to be tn have a string bass record. I'm sure of that because of the extra

amount of money I made by other recording companies paying me to come over to their studio and

ah play, oh, a few bars on the bass, that's all T had to do they said. It won't take anymore
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Brown: than fifteen minutes we'll pay you be glad to pay you a coupla hundred dollars of so
to come on overE Some of them would give me a hundred dollars, some of ‘em give me a hundred
énd fifty, iﬁg higdred dollars or so, get the money, just have me to come on over to theirl

A gtudios and play, so I knew that there must have been something to it. And up until that
particu}ar time, with all, with Mr, King he was in charge of the recording at thaf particul;r
tire, on llith street in New York. He said that ah, naw, he said, we can't record string
basses. He says, no, I'1l Zﬁiqé? just show it to you, he says he showed Goldkette how thej
bass spread the wax on them on the test but ah this is the way I figured that out the composit-
ion of the wax on the master...it must have been harder than the one on the test because the
tones come out alright, it surprised everybody. And from then on, why they wanted plenty of.
bass énd I, I when I was traveling, I'd stop in different music stores and I'd get different
ones of the salesmen's viewpoints of things how they was selling, how the records were moving,
and he says "Ohy, they like plenty of bass, the people like a lot of bass in them, they like
that heaviness that you have in there, he says, they like that," So ah ah that's why I
continued to play that way, I had heavier strings on my bass for larger orchestras, you know,
and because if I'd put the regunlars, legilimate size strings on why it wouldn't come out, it
wouldn't be as pronounced as it was on the records that you hear,

Russell: What kind of stripgs did you use, the ah ah E (?) and the ah -

Brewn: Welly, I'd I'd, have a heavier G than was ordinarily used

Russell: That was a gut string,.

Brown: Yeah, a gut.string, yeah G and D gut strings. Then I'd add A and E wfapped

Russell: Wrapped.

Brown: Wrapped with silk and then that would have, being heavier, hat would givé me ah ah a
deeper vibration, see. '

Russell: What kind of a bass did you use, do you remember the instrument, how much you paid
for it, what was it, ah~=-

Brown: Well, it was a German bass

Russell: German B,ss

‘Brown: And I only paid seventy-five dollars for it., And after I had it graduated and fixed

up like I wanted it, why I was offered seven or eight hundred dollars for it. In faét eh, at
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Brown: one time, in Cincinnati I think the Wurlitzer people offered me a thousand dollars for
it. Ah, but I liked it and it responded so well, and I could do anything I wanted with it,
almost, so I traveled all around until it was stolen from me. That was, I forget the year . it
was stolen, it was during the depression., And ah it was just like losing somebody in my family
* after I lost my instrument.
Russell: I guess so,
Brown: So, but I played locally for quite a long time around in Detroit and ah I've had my fun,
my only regret is the young boys are not paid as well and don't have quite as much fun as they
did have yeafs Back. For instance the recordings, we ah we got paid ah with Whiteman, we got
paid like the string sections got paid twenty#five dollars a side for recordings and the brass
men fifty dollars a side, and we'd make as high as eight sides, eight sides a day. With four
in the morning and four in the afternoon. See, So that, that was in ah outside of my salary
I received from Whiteman. That was extra moﬁey, or if we played any extra dances besides ah
our theater well we were paid extra for that. And we made grod money in those days but they
den't get paid that way now, they get paid for a session regardless of how ‘many records they
make, See, and that's my only regret that the young people don't have ah have the opportunities
that we had years back,
Allen: Well, what years were you with Whiteman and Goldkette? I didn't get that straight,
exactly.
Brownjy Well ah, I was with Whiteman around the latter part of '28 and '29, ah '28 and '29,
Then I went back to Goldkette, Now I've ah I've ah now you've heard a lot of talk about Bix
 Z§eiderbeck§7, he was a great chéracter. He's one that ah every musician talks about. . Because
he had eh oh, he was, his mind was always on music, nothing else, he'd play a job with us that
weculd terminate maybe one or two o'clock in the morning he'd be out with a group of boys maybe
playing or jamming with someone until about four or five in the morning, six in the morﬁing.
And I roomed with Bix and a great deal of the tihe, and Bix would come in by the tiﬁe I was
getting up to go out, and ah Bix was kinda forgetful at times. In one particular instance I
remember his leaving the hotel and leaving his.cornet, cornet there coming on the Jjoby you
know =-and no cornet. He'd have to gét a cab, pay a cab driver to ah haul his trumpet from

where he left, ycu know, clean out there to the job., And a great many times, Bix would be late,
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Brown: and he'd have to catch a cab--ah a cab and follaw the train to our Pext destination,
you know. Maybe the cab fare would be real high uh ha, but Bix didn't seem to mind that and
there was a lot of musicians I run across with this ZfranE? Trumbauer, he was quite a character
too., The musicians certéinly loved the way he played. And ah, I had a lot of fun in the music
game.

Allen: What about down here was there anybody who played Bix's style down here? Before you
went up north?

Brown: ﬁo, I can't say that I heard anyone phrase like Bix.

Allen: Uh-huh, | .

Brown: Bix had an individual phrasing of his own, so many of 'em claimed that he copied it
from this one and that one and some of 'em claimed that he copied it from /Nick/ LaRocca, ﬁell
he may have ah learned the numbers that LalRocca knew, that were récorded, you know,.

Allen: Yeah,

Brown: But his phrasing was entirely different. And his phrasing up today in comparison with
LaRocca you can find a differ:nt phrasing entirely. But Bix had ah had ah a different type of
phrasing entirely. Very noticable to all trumpet players. And if they wanted to tell the
truth they'll tell you this. Ii's no coﬁy of anyone, it's an individual phrasing of his own,
See, Bix, ah came from a musical family, too, ah Bix learned hcw to play piano I think before
he played trumpety I think he knew something about piéno before he played_trumpet. Ah, and
his fingering was ah entirely different from a legitimate piano player's fingering, you know
what I meany Bix learned how to play by ear, and when they learned how to play by ear, and wher
they tried to ah write the music for "In A Mist", and several other numbers of Bix why the
plano players themselves were confused because of Bix's false Tingering, you know, in order

to get certain passages you know, they‘trigd to copy it, see. But musically, they finally

got it down., See, to where it was anyone'could play it legitimately. And so is there any-
thing that you would like to ask me right now,.that I can't think_of myself?

Allen: TYeah, I'd like to ask you about ah Emmett Hardy, what did he play like, or did you

ever know him?

Brown: Emmett Hardy, yeah. Well Emrett Hardy played all right, he played a good.instrument,
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Brown: but he ah I wouldn't comparison _‘_::':ompare him with Bix,

Allen: uh-huh |

Brown: Although he had a style of his own,

Allen: uh-huh. I sce,

Brown: And he had, Emmett Hardy, he was more or less around Chicago., And he had a style of
his own, too, but ah both of 'em were had good styles and they were well liked and ah, but I
wouldn't say that ah Hardy phrased like Bix at all,

Russell: Do you remember where Hardy came from?

Brown: I thought Hardy came from Davenport, Iowa @97 but I'm not sure of that, But. I thoug
he did,

Russell: You never heard him down around here,

Brown: No,

Russell: Hardy

Brown: No, he wasn't down here then. We ah we had Emile Christian down here at that particu’
time, in fact I started Emile Christian out on trumpet at that particular time, And we had
him playing with us for awhile and then Tom and Emile Christian got on the outépots something
and Ray Icpez took his place,

Russely: Yeah,

Brown: At the Majestic Hall then, it was on 7th and Magazine at the time they had the dance
ball there, the ballroom,

Allen: What was your very first music job, by the way?

Brown: My first, well I'm ashamed to say that our (?) first music Job was ah in a private
home; I remember that job well, they served us ice cream with a fork (1aughter). And T tidink
they give us about 25 or 50.cent-s a number,

Allen: uh-huh,

Brown: to play. We were kids we were just tickled to death to be pPlaying not alone in in
accepting money from anyone, you know what I mean, we just thought that was great to be in a
party to be invited in a‘ party, you know and play,

Allen: Who was fbhere?

Brown: Huh?
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Allen: Who was there in the band?

Brown: Oh, we, yes, we had some boys that ah just played a little for fun, but they ah
haven't been in the music field t0.ess.

Allen: uh-huh .

Brown: To, ah..,

Allen: Did you have a trombone player?

Brown: No, we just had strings instruments at that particular time,

Allen: Oh, was Tom in the band?

Brown: Yeah, Tom played violin.

Allen: Ohl

Brown: And I played bass and zh we had another kid playin! guitar, by the name of Joe
Weathers, Weathers, who later became a priesty, so therefore, that's not worth mentioning., But
anyway, he, we built our band up graduwally, as we learned how to play and when we start
batching ourself, and we got ahold of those instruments that /Happy/ Schilling had left there,
why we branched out and had a band so quick and ah [ﬁohnny?Fischer's band at that time was a
well known band and Schilling, I think, is still living, isn't he?

Russell: Yeah

Allen: uh-huh,

Brown: Well, he'll tell you that we had a very good band in a short time after we started,
And we were attracting quite a lot of attention. The Fischer's band was also a good band, but
ah we later developed into one of the best bands around the city. -
Allen: Did you have any favorite bass players, other musicians when you were young then that
might have influenced your style or helped you in any way? )

Brown: No, Ah, it seems like I dep;nded more on my ear for everything, itAseemed like I was
happy when I got the right note, and I knew when I got the right note, my ear told me when I
got the right note. But there are a few charaéters that I admired around in New Orleans,

that ah I admired tneir bass playing. There was Chink [ﬁhrtié?, ah the ole' man Chink,
Russell: Yeah

Brown: His son, I think is playing around, but I mean--and there was another feller by the
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Brown: name of Johnny Guitar Z;eally Willie Guitag? who we always used to laugh about played
guit---played bass and lived on Music Street.

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: Well, I got a kick out of him, not for his playing not for his playing, but the way
\~he'd make a face with every change (laughter) and I'm telling ya he wasn't laughing either,
he was that's his style. He was ah he'd have to squirm his face up in different expressions
in order to make every particular note, and T'm telling you it was quite a treat to see him.
And his name was, I'll never forget him, he was Johnny Guitar played bass and lived on Musiec
Street, I thought that was a funny saying, I told some of the boys up there that ah if I ever
ran across him, if he was still livin' why I'd try to get a ﬁicture of him and send it to 'em
they heard he talk about him so much, But those two and the Loyacano boys they ah Arnold
Loyacano, I used to like his guitar playing, and Jules Cassard, you may have met him in
Chicago

Allen: That's Raymond's uncle, huh,

Brown: Yeah, Raymond!s unche, yeah.

Kllen: Raymond Burke's uncle, I never met him.

Brown: Well, he was a good guitar player and ah Bud Loyacano, he played bass andhe's over in
Gretna I believe now, livin' over in Gretna, he's retired over there. But he usea to play. a
bass the reverse style, like ah Shupaine or what, do you have another bass player arcund here
by

Allen: Mangiapane

Brown: Surpainia

Allen: Mangiapane

Brown: /Sherwood/ Mang:iapane-[ieft-hande;_ﬂ° Well he plays bass wrohg, See.

Allen: Instead of likeeses

Brown: The reverse

Russell: Yeah

Brown: Bud Loyacano plays the same way.
-Allen: vuh-huh.

Brown: And I used ‘o get a big beot nut of that. Even when he played guitar, he played
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Brown: guitar the reverse,

Allen: uh-huh,

Brown: OSee, instead of strumming it this way, put the neck this way and pick it up. "Pine"
Allen: Oh. (laughter)

| Brown: I don't see how he done it.

Allen: Pick it up with his left hand, huh?

Brown: Hyh?

Allent He'd go up with his left hand, I don't see how he made those chords with his right

hand,

Brown: I-don't see, but he did.

Allen: Fantastic | -

Brown: And that's the way he played bass. And so those were the ones I remember a whole lot

about. Now this Junge--

(telephone rings)

Allen: That may be for me., I'm supposed toe..

Brown: You know Jung?

Brown's sister: Ya, what's your name,

Russell: No, I don't think so

Allen: Dick Allen

Brown: You kncw anybody by the name of Jung?

Allen: I never heard of him.

Brown: They used to have a saddle place. Used to make saddles for horses and thingé like ‘

that on Magazine between Sixth and Seventh, |

Allen: How do you spell their names?

Brown: J-U-N-K, ah J-U-N-G, I think, and his father was the bass player, he played bass in

my father's band, and ah I thought maybe you knew him, '

Allen: No,

Brown: Well, now I don't know just what I could tell ya' ah

Allen: Well, there are different things I would like to ask you abouteee
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Brown: Everything is so badly screwed up in the "Jazz World" I, I (laughter) I, myself I don't
know what they are gona'! call it next, you know. They are calling it progressive jazz and
they callin' it, it's all the same, regardless.of what they call it, it's all the same, and ah
it all depends upon who'!ll get by. Now Benny Goodman tried to, get by with it as "swing" for
so long, you know, but it's just'the same numbers played in a faster tempo, or a little bit
more futuristically, you know what I mean,

Russell: When you were a boy, what did they call it?

Brown: Huh?

Russell: When you were a boy---what did they call this music-then?

Brown: Just hot music, ragtime music, we never knew anything about Jazz

Russell: When was the first time you heard it called jazz?

Brown: Well, when I ah when I was told about it, eh, in Chicago by the musicians. That's the
only thing I heard, even when I come down to New Orleans here to get a bass, to buy a bass to
go up to Chicago why ah I never thought of having this music being called "jazz", you know,
Allen: Well what was "plantation music"?

Brown: "Plantation music"? Plantation music was a different type of ah music, you know, like
"01d Black Joe" (hums out song) and such numbers like that, ah the slaves would play and ah
and they'd play mazookas /mazurkas/ and schottisches and things like that in their style, but
instead of playing it in the regular schottische or mazooka [ﬁazurké? tempos they'd go make a
di.ffererent tempo out of it, and play it a little bit differently, see? And that's what
attracted attention, as it went along, it would build up and I think more of us, ah we we ah
we took ideas from out in through that country as wekk as through the darkies that we heard
play, around here, too, you know what I mean, we took the ideas, the white people did~~that's
the poor white trash as we call ourselves.in those days. And ah we played what sound good to
us you know, whatever sounded good to us, we played, and we all felt that if when we sﬁruck the
right note, why ah we knew it was right becauSe.it pleased everyone. Now you take the Friar's
Inn band Zﬁogﬂ?, and none of us could read a note of music in that band except Elmer Schoebel,
And Elmer Schoebel would hold a rehearsal and.he'd give everjbody their notes to play, see, and
‘one piece we woﬁld rehearse on that one piece for hours and everybody would comit to memory

everything they'd suppose to do, And then when we would play in the nighttime, eVerYthing_
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Brown: would be perfect, you know what I mean. We had musicians from all over the city,
visitors too that would come in this cafe to hear us play. And we did have a fine band, that
was really abgood band,

~Russell: Can you tell us about when you joined the band, how yéﬁ happened to join you were
already in Chicago you say.

Brownt I was in Chicago, yeah. I happened to stop in the cafe and I wasn't ah, I wasn't
working I was just jobbing and I happened to stop in the cafe that particular night and it Just
so habpened that Arnold Loyacano had been playing in that band, but he took sick and didn't
show up, and they wanted a bass player so bad that they asked mé to sit in and play. Well when
I played a coupla numbers, they just went crazy, so Arnold was out from then on so I had the
job, And ah I played with them and at one time I played two jobs at one time. I played the
Midway Gardens up until twelve o'clock and then from there I jumped over to the Friar's Inn
and played then until five ofelock in the morning you see. And I did that for a long time,

and I made a lot of money in the music field, that's true, and where it went I don't know,
(laughter) Spent it as fast as I got it.

Russell: Who else was in the band when you joined? Friar's Imn,

Brown: Bri;r's Inn Band? Well Elmer -Schoebel sh Elmer Schoebel was plaving piano at that
particular time, and we had ah Mares, Paul Mares and we had Roppolo, Zieqé? on clarinet, Georg
Brunis on trombone, and we had ah ah ah ah Benny Pollack on drums; And I was playing bass, and

then other times we changed changed around and

Fnd of Reel II
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Russell: It's going, I guess. Can you tell us about the--you just named everyone in the band,
can you tell us a little bit about Georg Brunis and his family, you mentioned Georg Brunis.
Brown: Yes, well they had quite a large family, there's Abe [Kbbié7, and we used to--well one

we
of them used to nickname Jughead, I think (laughs) and ah therg was, you're acquainted with Ab?

‘ Russell: Yeah ’

Brown: And ah Georg played trombone, and ah let's see his other brothers, name is in St, Louis
now - Bay St., Louis I understand, Everett is it or Merritt.

Russell: Merritt

Brown: Merritt Brunies, yeah, yeah, he played trumpet; but ah different style, all of them
have styles of their own, you know.

Allen: Who was Jughead? What did he play?

Brown: I don't know what he played, I think he played fooled around with bass a little bit.
But he didn't come out very much, I think he just played around for his own amusement more than
anything else, he didn't try to commercialize on anything that he knew /probably Rudy/.
Allen: Well, who was added on--—-

Brown: You can get that information out of Mefritt himself.

Russell: Yeah, we'll have to ask

Allen: Well, who was added on to the Friar's Band later, you gave us the original men?
Brown: Yeah, well we bad ah

Allen: Who came in later?

Brown: Elmer Schoebel had to ah leave and at times we had Mel Stitzel who was another rliythm
band piano player; and ah when Zieq§7 Roppolo had to leavey, to go come back here to the
sanitarium--~he was sick=--we got another boy by the name of Volly DeFaut to piay c¢larinet in
his place; then we had Jack Pettis playirg saxophone; and ah, Jack Pettis played for a long.
time with the band after I left, and it seems like after Roppolo left the boys just couldn't
get together right, there was always something‘lacking and they sorta disﬁanded. After--when
I left the band Chink==Chink Martin joined the band, he played he made "Tin Roof Blues" and a

" few other records with tuba with the band.
" Allen: What numbers did you make with the band?

Brown: I made "Farewell", "Bugle Call", "Eccentric", and ah I think "Lots O! Mama" ah oh I



STEVE BROWN: REEL III =28= April 22, 1958

Retyped. -

Brown: forget now just all the records I did make with 'em, But ah you you just can't hear

the bass at all on it, as I said before you you it wouldn't'record in those days. And they

didn't there was no records there was no record that I know of by any company that produced the

sound of a string bass with the exception of the Victor people.,.that was in 1926 or the fall

of 1925, I don't know which when it i;inally came out, but it was 19=--I think it was 1926}

[Goldkette's"Dinah" recorded Jan. 28, 1926. Issued soon thereafter/,

Russell: And then Chink took your place then and went to Chicago-=up there

Brown: Chink=-Chink took my place in the Friar's Iyn band when I left them.

Allen: uh-huhe Well, where was he before he came, before he .joined them?

Brown: Oh, they got him from New Orleans,.

Allen: They got him

Brown: Chink==Chink had about eight kids, see, and he was always worried after he got up in

Chicago about his eight children., And ah I didn't see Chink at the time, I know he was in

Chicago playing with the Friar's Inn Band, but I was busy with other bands, see?

Allen: uh-=huh

Brown: Besides playing with the Midway Garden Orchestra, I'd be booked on & Monday night that

I was supposed to be off with some other orchestra, And Benny Goodman ah I was on a job date

one night and he appealed to me so much his playing appealed to me so much that I told hinm that

the next opening I would try to get him in our orchestra at the Midway Gardens, Well, we had

Roy Kramer playing clarinet in that band at that particular time and Roy quit and I told the

boys about this Goodman, Benny Goodman and they said "Yes, bring him over, we'll hear how he

sounds"., Well, Benny Goodman was afraid to come over to that orchestra, it was. so big, you -

know, he figured, "Oh I couldn't play with them, a big band like that", so when he played, why

the boys was all satisfie@ so he played with this band with our band for quite a long time, and

he played with the band up until the time I left,

Allen: uh-huh | |

Brown: I'd played with =-- he was playing with the banddat the time I left, and went to Join
an

[Jean/ Goldkette, Then later-sh-Goodman quit that band sh formed a band of his own, see, With

Benny Pollack [é'ctually leadeﬂ and those, Benny Pollack played with him at first,
Allen: TYesh '
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Brown: And ah they had a real good band, His brother played bass with him /[Barry Goodman,
ba.s_q? and ah I used to see him every now and then when I'd come into Chicago. But ah my most
enjoyable music years was spent with the Goldkette outfit because it was in my estimation a
very good band for the size--it was a big band and they played rhythmically-the rhythm was

u perfect, I mean it was=-it had a nice body to it and ah the people liked the music very muche-
aeveryone that we played for. We played the Ivy Ball which is an exception, do you know anything
about the Ivy Ball?

Russell: No,

Brown: Well, it's given every year in in Philadelphia and they hire the two most outstanding
orchestras around the country each year for that affair. And the one that receives the most
applause at this particular dance 1§ booked for the next year,

Russell: TYeah

Brown: But then they hunt around the country for the most outstandihg orchestra for t;he next
one. Now if this new one receives mofe applause than this other one, why that's reﬁlaced, see?
And that's the way théy work it. This Ivy Ball is one of the largest affairs in the country.
And we were very fortunate in playing that for several years, and we had to play against a lot
of fine bands at that particular time and ah I enjoyed myself playing with the Victor Band, I
think more than--Goldkette?s Victor Band more than I did with any other orchestra that I've been
with. With the exception of the Friar's Inn. The Friar's Inn was a smaller band, but it had
a lot of body on it, and we made good money with :ij.

Allen: I wanted to ask you about some of those fellows we were. talldng about in the grc;cery
store, when we took that.'break, from New Orleans,who you considered outstanding down heree-
musiclans, « »

Brown: Who?

Allen: When you were young?

Brown: A grocery store you said?

Allen: We were talking in the grocery store about different musicians down here and you named
some that were outstanding--this fellow Babb you talked about, and ah all that,

Brown: Oh, I-~I mentioned ah ah let's see I can't recall now just what we were talking about,

Allen: We were talking about Babb Fradk, a trombone player /actually he was a niasale nlaver.
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Allen: Possibly he means Frankie -Dusogy o

Brown: Oh, Babb Frank, yes, yes. Well, he was quite an ole man when I was a young boy. But
I mean at that particular time, I have--I remember how he played and how everyone talked about
him, See. ’

Allen: uh-hith

Brown: But ah you'll evidently find his name in some of the books, although I've failed to
find 1t, Ah, that's the same way with Johnny Guitar, /Re means Willle Guitari/ I've never
found his name, Well, he's never pioneered in music at all, see. A1l he played in one
catagory, morely downtown than anything else. He very seldom come on this side of Canal Street,
you'd always find him around the French Quarters. See\. Johnny Guitar, so therefore, he
wasn't known as well as a lot of the other musicians. Now the bands in that particular time,
playing in lawn parties over the city and then at night, after some dances or another you could
it -wasn't common to see, it wasn't out-of-place to see any orchestras serenading people,

Allen: wuh-huh,

Brown: 'Three, four o'clock in the morning. Different ones, we'd run aci‘oss different
orchestras as 1_ne'd pass by and they were going to some place to Serenade somebody and we'd be
going to some other place. And we'd wake the people up, and they'd seem to enjoy getting up,
at that time of the morning and invite us in--in their underclothes s in their nightpowns and
everything, and before you'd know it the neighbors would all come out of their houses, wouldn't
.%be dressed up, and before you'd know it there was a party going in the house-~everybody was
drinikdng and happy. Well, in those days you can imagine, no radio and nothing like that, when
the people heard just a note of music, well everybody was out. We used to have German bands,
that used to travel ai-ound the city of New Orleans and play a few numbers; the people'd all
come out and gather around, and then they'd pass the hat around.

Russell: How many would be in those German bands?

Brown: Hyh?

Russell: How many in the band? |

Brown: The German band? Well, they had quite a number of violins, first, second, and third
violins, flutes, cornets, trombones, and things like that. Ope band in particular that used to
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Brown: be around, .. Ithink it's called the 1lth Ward, the Garden District, tenth or eleventh
ward, around 6th and 7th street from Louisian=<Washington Avenue or Jackson Avenue up to
Louisiana Avenue aroundizhat area, there used to be a German band that'd come regular and play
around in the neighborhcod and pass the hat around. Well, the rumor was that they were stranded
Rd:nver in this country, and that they were trying to get enough money to get back to Germany.
And they would play..and around in that particular section's known as little Germany anyway,
see around Laurel and ah between 6th and Washington=-all that area around there is all more or
less German people. And ah then, of course you know where the Irish Channel is,

Rusgell & Allen: Yeah, -

Brown: And that's the wa.)r New Orleans is, it separates, you know, the middle class people live
on this side of Magazine Street and the lower class would be from there to the river, you

know, and that's the way it was in those days. But now I don't remember all the musicians in
the ﬁohnny'/- Fischer's Band, but they had ah quite a good band at that time., But they never
ventured out of New Orleans, I don't think LEO. Went to Clucagg_? maybe played danced out of
the state for a little bit, but they never went up., I don't think Fischer, I don't think
Fischer or any of them went up there, if they didy, I never did rgzad anything about it. Did you
ever ask Schilling in regards to anything like that?

Russell: We'll ask him, we'll ask him. _

Allen: Well Schilling told me he went to Chicago oncey, 1 ft:.mrget who was in the band.

Brown: Well, maybe they did,

Allen: But he came back ah. Who did Billy Lambert play with? You mentioned him awhile ago.
Brown: Well, he went up with Tom.

Allen: uh-huh, Who did he play with down here?

Brown: Well, he played with different bands around here, from what I understand, just jobbing
just like the musicians are now. You never know who they're playing with, They liable to (?)
only play with one group one week, and another gfoup another week, you know, and it's sorta a

mixed up affair. fr:tze understatemenﬂ And the musicians as a general rule, they--sven in

all bands, big bands, /Paul/ Whiteman's band included, while I was there they made quite a
number of changes, see?

Allen: uh=huh, -
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Brown: Roy Bargy came in while I was there, and sh we had [Harry/ Parella fella witp the bushy
long hair played "Rkpsody in Blue" om the piano you know &t first,

Allen & Russell: o0h Yeah, uh-huh,

Brown: Well he got so temperamental, that he thought he couldn't that Paﬁl couldn't do without
" him so when he did--when he left the orchestra~Paul never would fire anybody,.when he left the
orchestra why he got a hold of Roy Bargy and Bargy took over the job, and in no time he was
playing just like Parella. "Rhapsody in Blue! first in his place(?),

Brown: But they made quite & lot of changes in Whiteman's Band alone, And that's the way i£
is with ah ah these other small orchestras I was in, '

Allen: Now who was Joe Meyers? I never heard of him before,

Brown: Who?

Allen: Meyers, you mentioned a drummer ,

Brown: Joe Meyers. Well he's dead now, he used to play drums with us quite a 1ot around New
Orleans on job dates, And ah he was..he came back here and went on the Police Fores latef on
from what I understand, married and his father was ah--had some sért of a political Jjob at that
particular time. In fact his father used his influence to ah get me A string bass,,,

Allen: uh<huh,

Brown:..when I was growlng up. I first had a half sige bass that I bought, and as I grew up why
' that little half size bass was gettin' too small for me, see, I was standing up and the 1little
bass was down here, and I was fingering down here, see,

Russell: Wasn't even up to your shoulders,

Brown: That's right. And so Joe Meyer's father had some sort of pull down town in one of the
stores..

Russell: Yeah

Brown: ..80 he told me to go down there and pick out a bass and P&y S0 much a week and he'q
stand good for it, which I did. So that was my first--first bass that I paid a hundred and
twenty-five dollars for, I think, at that particular time which is g high amount, Byt playing
music as we were then, why it didn't take no time to pay off everything,

Russell: Yeah

Brown: But in those days twenty-five cents was a high amount. A mewrann ancars oov aws .
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Brown: out all day and have a good time with it. It's just like a five dollar bill. I mean
I could take--for five cents I could get a chicken dinner and ah a great big glass of beer
enough to fill you up for the rest of the day you know what I mean--that was lunch for five
cents, And I mean you could go to a show for ten cents, see, gnd ah people-—admission charges
“were twenty-five cents for a dance, why my goodness, that was a high price for them to pay.
But in those days why that was big money.

Russell: What did they pay the musicians?

Brown: We paid, we played an all day picnic for around three dollars and a-half.

Allen: uhee- _ k

Brown: From nine o'clock in the morning till six o'clock in the evening., The people danced
all day ate dinner out there and all that. They charged the people maybe a dollar, a dollar
and a quarter admission. Which entitled them to dance and a big dinner. So all they could
drink, They had drinking all day long. Barrels of beer, barrel after barrel. Séjyou can
see just how tpe money values were in those days. And so the musicians as a general rule all
those that piayed ragtime as I'd say were more or less poor. All those-~the people that were
wealthy that taught their sons legitimately they didn't have the knack you know what I mean.
Russell: uh-huh

Brown: They played mechanically, you know what I mean,

Allen: uhe~huh

Brown: s..even if they played something from memory, it was from notes alone, see. No
improvision.[35provisatiq§7 or anything like that. But ah we treined our ears so that we could
Just hear a piece

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: We could hear a piece and we could go right home and sit down and play it. We==the
melody remained with us, see. We trained our ears so that, oh--I could, I fodled quite a

lot of 'em--they thought I was readin' music a great many times in orchestras,

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: But I wasn't, I was just lookin' at tﬁe music bluffing.

‘Russell: Yeah

Brown: But as the time went along, I saw where I had to quit bluffing and get down to reading.
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Brown: So, I didy I got down and studied music and

Russells Did you take any lessons in those days or just learn it? .

Brown: Noy, I bought myself a method and I knew the finger board and I--in a short time I
learned where all the notes were. And when I was played with the big bands why of course I
made those notes in the positions that the notes called for.

Allen: Who's your favorite bass player of all time? I was wondering about that. You kncw,'if
you had to choose one for a hot bass player.

Brown: Ahhhh-Jiell, what do you mean.. in that time or now?

Allen: Anytime--now and at that time or you know..of all time, in other words,

Brown: Well, ah the boy that ah really has a nice style and has put out several methods and
is deserving a great deal of consideration was—-ah what is his name again ah he was with ah
with Bob Crosby for a long time..with Ray Bauduc and all the ah, what's ah

Allen: Bob Haggart |

Brown: Bobby Haggart, Well now, he put out quite a lot of methods and his ah his explanation
of the bass is of considerable value to a lot of the young boys that are ﬁhkin' up bass because
it gives them the proper steps on workin' around each note you see what I mean..,.

Allen: uh<huh

Brown: o..walkin' the bass, and ah workin' 'round each individual note, see, In other words
it teaches them improvision [Emprovisation see, Now I myself I don't believe that anyéne can-
improvise quickly and correctly unless they have the picture of the keyboard of the piano in

- mind. They ah there!s so many of them that learn how to play'instruments, they should learn
the keyboard of the plano first. Nowny own sons and daughters, they wanted to take up music
and I told them I said well there's the piano, you learn how to play all the scales on the
piano and I'1l buy you any instrument you want. Oh, the boys said, "we won't have that, we
won't do it." And my daughter says she would. So I had a good teacher for her. But my sons,
they had the talent if they'd want to play because ah my son JimmwiZ§roqé7 proved it to me
right after he came out of the service; he sat down at the piano and in a short time he was

playirg all boogie woogle pieces and everything else,
‘Allen: uh<huh,

Brown: That showed that he had talent if he wanted to learn. But his mind is more io ah the
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Brown: type that I hoped that he would get into rather than music because music is awful nice |
in a respect but there's the musicians spend their money as fast as they get it you know what I
mean.

Russell: Yeah

", Brown: In other words, you have to get around and drink with the boys in order to become
known, you know what I mean and you have to produce something. If you produce something out-
standing why you have a lot of admirérs, you, you can't afford to fluff them off. Now like Bix
[ﬁeiderbeckg, he was admired by so many musicians the poor devil would be comin® in he'd be

. traveling all day on the train--all tired, and we'd get into a hptel where all of us would want
to stretch out a little bit and relax a 1ittle bit for an hour or two before playing that night
and here a whole crowd would meet Bix at the station, you know.,

Allen: uh~huh

Brown: And it was during the dry days they'd have hootch [Ghisfceﬂ ‘on them and Bix would try
to be polite and when he'd fluff them off a 1little bit and get to the hotel there was another
gang waiting for him, see. And they all had a bottle, and Bix was constantly drinking' all the
time. That's what put him to his death, you know. But ah he was loved; I think Bix was

loved by the musicians more than any other musi h%': of o And there was a lot of fine

Spﬂl
boys that I've met in the music game ah, such as Spei%

ilcoi, he'd ah got a 1ittle Dixieland
combination now around Cortland, New York, His father left a coal business to him. He used to
play trombone wi_‘bh us in the Victor band. Now he didn't play a hot drombone, bﬁt he had a
beautiful tone, round beautiful tone; we'd use him for beautiful numbers to come out on solo.
Bill Rank would come out with the hot numbers more because he had that type of & trombone, but
ah Speigan Wilcox would have a beautiful round tone, smooth, and the boy had a nice person- .
ality well educated, and well liked by everyone he used to come in contact with,

Allen: Oh, who did you record with, you said the Friars boys and who else?

Brown: Well, I recorded with the Friar's Inn, [ﬁORy of course, and the ah the Midway Garden

Orchestra; we made some for Brunswick and ah none of those records of course in my estimation

were what I'd consider good. I had to play tuba on that, end I wasn't good on tuba, (laughs)
In fact, I think I--I think I was about the poorest tuba player on anybody!'s record, but I did
make a few records with them. And I recorded with them on tuba. But ah
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Allen: Maybe we can play some of the records now, Bill,

Russell: There's a coupla other questions I was gonna ask. Of the old time bass players he:
in New Orleans, which would be your favorite? When you were younger, .Or is there more than
one. )

Brownt Well, there used to be a fellow by the name of.[—t;7 McKinney, HcKinnby ah but ah oul
side of working and playing extra with dances he never showed himself much and there'y anothe
bass player that ah I'm trying to think of the name of now that ah seemed to appeal to me whe
I was a ldd, but %uzzh't think of his name now,

Allen: It'11 come to you,

Brown: I'd have to get it from ah someone who r emembers those days, Ah, Bultmann,‘ﬂultmgnn,
Buitmann, a feller by the name of Bultmann, he was a nice bass Player. Had good tone and
everything, buthe never played the type of bass I played, I aay; I think I started off that
way, playlng bye.with the bow but after I put it aside to give the aft'beat [fafterbeat/ rhyth
ah in place of the drums, the boys liked it so well that I had to continue it that way, and
from then on I never knew what a bow looked like.

Russell: Did you ever hear anybody pick it before you did?

Brown: Huh?

Russell: Did anybody ever pick that bass before you did that do you remember,

Brown: No, well after I was pickin' it for awhile, the only time I run across, I run across
ah Johnny Guitar--he was pickin'! it then., But I had been pickin! 1t\

Russell: Before

Brown: Long before I heard him so how long he was pickdn' it I don't know, But, he'd squinc!
‘up his face and I tell you it's the truth---it was so funny to watch himeebut ah outside of
that, I don't remember any of them,

Russell: And the_Loyacanos

Brown: There's a lot of them pizzicatoing it; you know what I mean, like you do legitimately,
they always did do that, see,

Russell: Oh, they always did pick it.

Brown: But they'd never slap the bass, i1t'd never have that afterbeat effect, see. I used to

get an afterbeat effect, you can notice from a lot of the pieces when they take a éolo and
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Brown: instead of just playing the straight note like you hear a lot of them playing now, see,
a very few of them slap the bass. Becsuse of it's too troublesome to the bass player, it
creates a lot of trouble with their finger board, it ah puts too heavy an indentation in the
finger board, and they always have to have it dressed, which I had to do constantly in order
,ib keep my bass. |

Russell: When you pick how many fingers do you use to pick with? Your firsteee-

Brown: I used to use, I used to use two, three, two and three fingers, sometime I'd slide it
over like this, '

Russell: Oh, yes, one after the other alternating.
Brown: Then sometimes I'd, I'd when there was heavy music, I'd have the support of these three
fingers.

Russells The first three fingers, altogether,

Brown: I'd grab them, I'd when there was heavy music, I'd have the support of these three
fingers,

Russell: The first three fingers, altogether, '

Brown: I'd grab them,'I'd grab them, because mine was heavier string heavier strings than were
ordinarily used on the string bass. They weren't soft and pliable. Now you take for legitimat
work, I couldn't finger it as well as a legitimate man cpuld, because my strings were too heavy,
but I had to have them heavy on éccount of the body, to produce with all that heavy instrument-
ation that we had,

Russell: Did you ever put tape

Brownzi Eighteen or twenty mence.

Russell: Put tape on your fingers or

Brown: I didn't at thafparticular time.

Allen: You didn't,

Bfown: No, and my fingers!were still tough.

Russell: TYeah

Brown: And the more I played the tougher they.got. They got calluses on 'em,

Russell: Yeah

ﬁrown: But all these boys that was startin' to play bass, they used to come to me and ask me
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Browns ‘what they could do about their fingers and some of 'em I told 'em, I sai& well the besi
thing I can tell you to do is to put a little tape on 'em or ah put your fingers down in
formaldahyde the tips of 'ém in formaldehyde...that gives it sorta a coating over there a dead
feeling that you don't feel it. But you ses, it don't give You the correct feeling any how
after you put that on.

Rﬁgsell: No, no

Brown: ﬁut it does prevent your fingers from gettin! sore, see. And there's other stuff they
. put on there now; ah I.don't know what it is, it is told to me, but I forgot it., But ah I
never had to do it myself, 'cause my fingers was so callused up that they were--I don't know,
I could play all night and all day'without my fingers hurting me or bothering me at all, but
as I laid off of bass for awhile-~I had arthritis and I come back trying to play a 1little bit--
I felt it when I picked quite awhile., M& fingers commenced to gettin! a little sore. They '
softened up on me, see. But you can readily see why it had no effect upon me because I was
handling sheet metal for about seven years and that was strong, -
Russell: OCan you tell us about those tin violins and instruments that you made oﬁce?

Brown: Well, Tom made them more than I did; He experimented with all those kind of thingsy
in fact if the credit was rightfully due, Tom was thg first one to make that type of a mute for
the troﬁboneo &

Russell: Oh, is that right'é

Brown: Yeah, he made a tin mute and put the catches for cork in there you know

Russell: Yeah

Brown: So he could slip into his--to Ereate different effects,

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: And he'd make a different type. Well, ah as years went along why sﬁmeone had the same
idea and made it out of cardboard and plasticy anyway they got a patent on ity you know,
different ones got patents on it, and they made a lot of money. If Tom had a got a patent on
it, at that particular time, he'd been alright,

Russell: Yeah _

Brown: But ah, he never bothered about it, but we made ah as I told you we made our, I made

the first bass fiddle--he and I worked on it together--and the damn thing sounded just like a
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Broﬁn: bass after we got through with it, but always stunk like anything from the cheese that
was in it you know,

Russell: Well, what (1aughs)

Brown: Cheese, originally cheese boxes, But we had t!ese hegvy, heavy ash twine strings.

- Russell: TYeah | |

Brown: And when we'd bring up the tension to the desired pitch why it sounds

Russell: Real rope

Brown: Yeah, just rope, this ah, and it sound enough to please us for about three pleces, you
know violin, guitar, and bass, so ah it gave us a kick out of it something, you know, just
like a kid taking a box and puttin a stick across it and puttin' strings across it, why-or like
meilg "Stale Bread" 's /Latoume/ band, "Stale Bread" had a half a barrel, a barrel cut down.
Russell: Oh, yeah

Brown: ..e.e8ees In the center, from the top to the bottom, and %hen they had it all boarded
up with F holes cut in it, and they had a neck that protruded from there, see, and the strings
were down, I don't know what sort of strings, he had, but they used to sit out there and play
with that type of a bass and guitar right along the sidewalk near the St. Charles Hotel and
places like that, collecting nickels, dimes, and quarters, see,

Allen & Russell: uh-huh

Brown: The passer<bys just stand there to hear them play. But in those days, no radio,
television or anything like that, why when anyhddy'would rlay a musical instrument, people
would stand by.

Russell: Sure,

Brown: And listen at them play, see., So, ah that time that I experienced was entirely
different from nows everything is so conglomerated with different other's ideas, that I don't
lnow whether you'll benefit by anything thaEI say or not,

Russell: I know we will, |

Allen: Yeah, this is very good.

Russell: TYou're straightening out a lot of tﬁings there for us. N

- Brown: If you got any questions to ask me about who |

Allen: Yeah, what about, what about saxophones? Did they ever use saxophones in those early
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Allen: days?

Brown: No. No, we didn't know what a saxophone was,

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: Ah, ah the saxophones didn't come out until around, I'd say around 1913, 1912, and
" that the /[5ix] 'Brown Brothers come out with those

Allen: uh-huh "

Brown: Tom Brownand I think it was the four Brown brothers, I think they call themselves the

Four Brown Brothers.

END OF REEL III, April 22, 1958



Brown: Tell them that's where after all,

Russel: Tom got a nice write-up there in the paper.

Allen: He deserved credit,

Brown: Yeah, well he was in reality a pioneer in the jazz field. There and there was othar
colored bands that were up there. This was before Louie Armstrong come up there

Rugsel1: Oh, it was.

Brown: This was before ah the ah ah King Oliver and all those come up. Ah, ah King ah ah and
the bands that King Oliver played and Armstrong when they first come up from New Orleans wasn!/
a Dixieland combination at all. They had violins, they had flutes, and they had about eight-
ten-twelve men, sitting on a stand,

Rugsell: Yeah.

Brown: And they played ah regular music as all the other colored people.

Russell: Yeah

Brown: But the Dixieland combination, just five pieces=-that's entirely different.

Russell: Yeah, Oliver, I think, got up there about 1918 in Chicago, and you say "Papa® Laine
had mostly just the brass bands,

Brown: Mostly brass bands

Russell: And didn't do much dance work, then.

Brown: No. He'd take the small bands but, I mean, you see what-=he played drums if he maybe in
a small combination, but I mean I, I don't remember seeing--we didn't have no competitionwith

these bands at all. In fact, the only bands that gave us competition in a respect was ah

[Jobnny/ Fischer's band, and that band was—-in in the estimation of the dancers and the people

that I talked to that employed us was second raters in comparison to our band.

Russell: Yes.

Brown: And we played ah all the most exclusive affairs in New Orleans at the time up to the
time I left 'em in 1913.

Rullell: You say Papa Laine would turn some of his dance jobs over to you then when he'd get
them.

Brown: Oh, yes, great many times he had bands, ah dances downtown and he'd glve us the job.

Russell: Did you evelwen=

- End of Spool. -
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Brown: And of course he'd get his booidng fees, you know,

Russell: Yeah. Did you ever work in any bands with ah

Brown: Jack Laine?

Russell: Jack Laine, g

Brown: TYes, yes,

Russell: Or did you

Brown: I played tuba with Jack Laine-=Jack Laine quite a number of times across the r:l.vex'- as
I remember it at different affairs, - |

Allen: Would that be dances or

Brown: Dances, yeah dances

Allen: Oh, What sort of a rhythm did he get?

Brown: See, we used to employ brass bands for dances, too, great big dances. Now they used
to have ah dances out in all the large pavilions., They'd have a great big brass band' in
order to be heard. Well that was = = added. But later on like in }ﬁlﬁe‘tmrg and in .
West End, they had certain pavilions out there that it all depended upon Ithe chalrman of the
committee, if he wanted an orchestra he'd specify an orchestra, you know, or if he wanted tl,o
hire a brass band, he'd hire a brass band. But as a general rule, they ah they the orchestra
used to sound better to the dancers than the braés band, in fact, they could dance much better
than they could with a dance band to the brass band. A brass band couldn't get in the groove
like the orchestras could.

Russell: Do y;:m remember who was in Papa Laine's band, any of the other musicians that you
can think of now?

Brown: '"Papa! Laine's Band"

Russell: uh-huh,

Boown: Ah, uh, I remember a lot of them, but names I can't--you'd have to get that from Jack
Laine himself, I imagine he know, remembers all the names of

Russell: One clarinetist, /Achille/ Baquet did you ever know of him?

Brown: Baquet, yes, I remember him, Now I think he played with the ah band quite a bit. He
~ played for Jack Laine and’ Baquet used to at times, play job dates with us, Maybe when Gussie

Meuller was sick or couldn't get off or something happened--Baquet and Yellow Nunez and ah
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Brown: [Larrﬁ Shields, and different ones at differ.ent times, the same as Harry Shields will
play with different combinations around here now, and you'll see "em on television with sh,
with ah what?s this little short fella's name again?

Allen:  Sharkey. .
Brown: Sharkey and he'll play around with different combinations, any place that will offer
him money, you know, ,'
Russell: Yeah, sure.

Brown: And that's the same way with the (?) musicians were when I was down here up until 1913,
Russell: Do you remember a fella by the name of Dave Perkins-«I think he played trombone.
Brown: Dave Perkins, yes, he was outstanding fella at that particular time.
Allen: Who'd he play 1like? Did he play like jazz ()

Browns Well, I didn't like his playing as well as I did Babb Frank that's when I was little
Allen; uh-huh

Brown: I remember Dave Perkins when I was little. And ah they had a bass player a colored
bass player ah I can't think of his name now--He was a light complec‘ted Creole sort of a fella
he played a good bass, I used to admire him with the colored bands., He used to play a good
bass and played the good notes as I call them, you know.

Allen: Do you remember which band he played with?

Brown: I think he played with the Creole band.

Allen: uh-=huh ,
Brown: A band called themselves the Creole Band. And I think the Creole band used to be
around our neighborhood,
Allen: It couldn't be Bill Johnson?
Russell: I just started to say, I think it might have been

Brown: I think they lived on--I think one of the members lived on Sixth near Laurel Street
Allen: Huh? |

Brown: On the downtown side, and they used to hold rehearsals, rehearsals quite often, They
had violins and things like that, and flutes in the band. And we lived around the corner from
them and I used to hear them rehesarse,

Allen: Oak Gaspard, did you ever know him?
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Brown: That name is familiar to me, but I just can't

Allen: A colored bass player, I think he was pretty light, !

Russell: Yeah, I never did know him either,

Brown: Now, they used to have a professor that used to teach music, I think his name was sh
Barnett--and ah the whole family played music, and we were at one time--we went over to their
place to play for the old man. And there I remember the 0ld man being a teacher in legitimate
music business, It was just amazing to him to see how we played, so well without;using notes,
you know what I mean. And from everything--everything from memor_:wr. And complete;ly dependent
upon our ear. To him that was quite a sensation. And ah Broekhoven, I remember Theodore
Broekhoven, I did, I went overto his place one time and I took one lesson on tuba, (laughter]
Russell: On tuba V

Brown: And after he give me one lesson--I figured_ I knew enough, I had the ideay, he just
showed me how to blow.it you know,

Russell: Yeah

Brown: And sh-~o0le' man Broekhoven. Theodore Broekhoven, was the one that gave me my first
Carnival job for the parades, N?w I'm not talkin' about the first Carnival job we played for
the Garden District Club. But for the floats in between the--no, the bands.,

Russell: Yeah

Brown: In between the floats--we had professional bands, no school bands as there are now.
Russell: Like the Rex Parade, those big ones,

Brown: Yes, the big ones, we played all the parades. And in those days, we didn't have school
bands.

Russell: Yes

Brown: All professional musicians... each band. And he'd ah go outa' the state in Mississippi
and Alabama and Georgia and even as far as Florida to get different bands to come in there and
to play this parades, These parades, behind each floats, you know,

Russell: Between each one of those floats there was a band. |

Brown: Oh, beautiful and the bands would be ‘playin' and it was a much finer carnival than they
- have today. In my estimation=-I mean

Russell: How big a band?
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Brown: Everything is, huh?

Russell: How big a band?

Brown: Well, about ten pleces, ten

Russell: Ten piece

Brown: to twelve pieces for each band

Russell: vuh-huh

Brown: And ah dependent upon what unit it was--some of these country unit'd maybe had twelve
or fifteen. Theodore Broekhoven I think would only pay 'em one lump sum for a band, you see,
they would have to split that up amont themselves. But ah the ¥nion would furnish as many
bands as they could, out of their own organization, and then from there they'd import a lot of
bands. So I happen to see Theodore Broekhoven down there, and I was nervy as anything, I'd
talk to anybody.

Russell: yeah, sure.

Brown: I told him I had a good band, and he signed me up. He evidently heard about us, you
know, and so he gave me the jJob, gave me the first Carnival jJodb that I playeds So, I had quite
a lot of fun around New Orleans in my young days and

Allen: Well, which

Brown: And I didn't expect to be so successful, so successful with music when, after laying off
it for so long, for seven years you may a8 well say, and them returning to it and start playing
and workdng my way up from I was just steppin' from one orchestra to another, better orchestras
and better orchestras and more money and mare money up until the time I got to ﬁau;? Whiteman,
When I got to Whiteman, I figured well I can't go any further. So, that was the time when,
when I'd get out and play before the band Whiteman used to make me coms out in the ﬁont{snd
play a solo and ah in grabbing them strings, . my arm used to pain me awful and I didn't know
what was happening,

Russell:

Brown: And my fingers were feelipg bad and I didn't know what it was but anyway, after I left
Whiteman, I went to the hospital ﬂr’hd them to take X-ray of my fingers thinidng that I had a

fractured bone or something that was aching me so, and the, doctors told me, no i1t was arthritis
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Brown: And they told me--I asked them what they could do--and they said, well we can't tell
you, there's not a cure knoun for it.

Russell: TYeah, that's right,

Brown: So up=to-date there's not a cure known for it.
Hussell: My mother has it, too.

Brown: So I read a book one time and it said that the only thing that they coﬁld advise a
person to do that any sickness was caused by what a person eat so tizey advised me to go on a
diet, (phone I"ings) Strict diet, just change around ' -
Russell: You want me to answer, I think that's Ralph /Collins/

Brown's sister: I can answer it, |

Russell: My friend, go ahead and talk,

Brown: They thought that ah they thought the best thingtgo would be to reverse things of
what I had been doing. So I quit drinking coffee, I quit drinking any sorfiof likkers and I
quit eating meats of any kind, nothing but \;regetables nothing but ah barley coffee and things
like that. And I dc;ne that for about four years. And my fingers commehc_ed to limber up.
And I think that's what largely did it. |

Brown's sisterj I%'s not five o'clock, is it?

Russell: Yeah, just about five, about two minutes to five,

Brown's sister: It isl

Brown: Then in conjuction with that, I took ah what they call "Neutralite"(sp?) and that
seemed to help me a whole lot, too. That was sort of a vitamine,

Allen: Ohy, I see, |

Brown: And then later on I start eatin' meat again and so far I've been able to navigate
-around, but my fingerse-are--I'm not in, not so that I could finger a bass like I'd want to,
I can bluff things around a while and maybe as old as I am, I'm liable to be like Tom--a
little later on grab hold of a bass all of a sudden, you know, and sit in with a band and
start playing again, but it will never be anything like I used to do,

Russell: Well you can still get better, as I say, better and...

Brown: Well, that's what a lot of musicians said, but my playin' didn't satisfy me and
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Russell: We can play some of those old records, and then--I wondered first though, if you have
anything more to add about Tom gi(ing to Chicago since he's not here to speak for himself,..
anything else you think he wanted known about himself and the .things that he originated and
first started,
Brown: Well, ah I was away from Tom and all the boys at that particular time and in a differen
line of business entirely with sheet metal works--therefore I can only tell you what he'd write
and how the band was going along and what letters I received from Ray Mue=«=-Ray Lopez who ah
‘would write me now and then. Gus Meuller'd never write me, and Tom would very seldom write mes
/at that time, But Ray Lopez told me says, "You know, he says, when we first got to Chicago
he says the people thought we were drunk. They thought we were crazy. They refused to come
into the cafe. He says they ah ah Just peeped in there and looked 'in there and they saw
some fellas sittin' on the piano playir;g (laughs) and here's a fella doing something else, he
says, My God, he says, Lamb [ovmer of Lamb's Cafe?/ come to Tom, and he says say he says
something®s wrong, those people are not comin! in. Well he says ah the néxt day he says I
happened to be down in the Loop and I met some actors that were in the theatre there--and they
sald, "Ray, what are you doin' in Chicago?" Oh, he says, "I'm here with Brown's band," "You
are, they say, with that band down there". He say "Sure", he says. "My goodness, where you
playin at?" He says Lamb's Cafes So they call up and reserve seats in Lamb's Cafs, And from
then on the damn p.lace start be.;-.ng packed. And Ray Lopez tells me that the people.were walte-
ing a block and two blocks long. Waiting to gain admittance at the Lamb's Bafe, at that
particular time. So, it really went over fast in Chicago. The people accepte;i it and took ove
to it very quickly. But when they went to New York, Ray sast, the people didn't take to it so
quick, but went into it as act,- as a rube act. And ever! place they played, you know, the
people get the drift of things, you know, .
Russell: TYeah |
Brown: And ah because they didn't go over so‘we]_'l., they didn't get the booking, So, finally
the some of the boys left New York and left Tom and Ray up there. So they had to fight it out
“the best way they could, so Tom drifted in with other bands, and Ray Lopez drifted in with
other bands, toos And Ray lopez, and Ray [ﬁus, he mean§7 Mueller he played at the College Inn.
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Brown: And later on joined Whitemén.

Russell: We'll try to get to talk to Ray?nge's out in Hawthorne?

Brown: Hawthorne, California, I'1ll give you the address before you leave,

_ #Allen & Russell: Good o

Allen: And one more thing I want to--two more things, who was Baquet's name, do you remember?
There was more than one of them here, I know, ah

Brown: That's been so long ago.

Allent Could it have been Aghille or George or something like that or could have been
Brown: No, no I couldn't help you out in that, '

Allen: You couldn®t,

Russell: I think 1t must have been Achille,

Allen: You never know

Brown: The only way==-I tell ya' the only one that could help answer that question would be
ah ah Chink /Martin/ he he

Allen: Ohy yes, we'll ask him,

Brown: He remembers Baquet and all those and could give you their first names more than I
could because he's been down in New Orleans more or less ever since.

Ryssell: Yeah, that's right.

Allen: uh-huh,

Brown: Hey; he left just for a short time up to Chicago and then came right on back. So he'd
remember those names far more than I could.

Russell: uh-<huh

Allen: And another fella, did you ever know a fella by the name of Zﬁellma_g? Braud that
played bass?

Brown: 'Braud, ah ah what city--New Orleans?

Allen: Well, he's from New Orleéns s but he was with Duke Ellington for awhile, And he |
traveled &all over with Ellington.

Brown: Braud--no, I don't imagine so. He was evidently a young Idd when I was ah

Allen: Noy, how old is Braud?

Brown: goneo
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Allen: He's about your ./ sixty-five

Russell: I think he was born in 192, about two years ybunger

Allen: Wellman Braud...he said he played with Duke Ellington and said you were his favorite

bass player.

Brown: Is that right? _

Russell: He said, last night he said that you were the greatest bass player he had ever heard

Brown: Well, maybe, maybe he ah

Allen: TYou'd know him if you saw him.

Russell: I think so.

Bfown: Huh?

Allen: You'd know him if you saw him.

Brown: Well, I played along side of Duke Ellington, see.

Allen: uh-huh. TYeah,

Browns At the Roseland ballroom, they had two bandstands there, see,

Russell: | v

Brown: And they used to have that for a novelty, They'd have one colored orchestra and one
white orchestra. And when the Victor band opened up why we we held our own, we had a good ban
And this Duke Ellington's band was good and also ah ah ah (chuckles)

Allen: Piano pla'yer.

Brown: No, the cornet player, Armstrong.

Allen: uh-huh,

Russell: Oh, yeah,

Brown: I played along side of Armstrong there, see. And .Arrﬁgtrong would come up there, we
usedto have more fun with Louie than enough, see. He'd come up there with the valet come upon
the band stand w:lth his coon rat coat on, you know (laughter) and have his valet to take the
coat off right where all the people could see hlm. He'd stand up ‘there you know and put on a
lot of monkey shjnes and he had all the dancers laughing. And he used to stand out on the
other side, too, and play against us., We made several trips to the Roseland Ballroom, see,

. that used to be our stopping off place there and in the day time we'd record and then at night
we'd play at the ballroom, ses, that'd take care of our expenses. But ah
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Allens What about McKinney's--that's another Band I wanted to

Brown: McKinney's Cotton Pickers

Allen: uh-huh

Brown: Well they originated in Chi-=--in Detroit.

Allen: uh=huh

Brown: Ahhh=-=they were organized and promoted principally by George Horvath (sps), who's de
now.

Allen: uh-huh

Brownz‘ And ah, he's ah Charlie Horvath, Charlie Horvath--he was a promoter for the Goldkette
Enterprises as they call 'em, Goldkette néver did promote anything--he could sell, he was a
good salesman

Allen: | uh~huh

Brown: He could'go there and sell. But ah promoting anything Charlie Horvath was the one re:
promoter, and he'd--he'd promoted the Cotton Pickers. After the Victor band broke up when he
promoted the Gotton Pickers and he also organized the W G N Band in Chicago, And ah I guess
you got a record of that--of that Goldkette outfit haven't you?

Allen: Yes |

Brown: Under the directions

Allen: I just wondered if we needed any

Brown: of StokesS....Harold Stokes

Allen: TYes

Brown: Harold Stokes was ah ah

Allen: It's in that book.

Brown: That was the other Goldkette unit.

4Allen: uh<huh

Brown: Was that the sh-~they made quite a number of records but their records didn't sell any
thing in comparison to the Victor Yecords, S0,

Allen: You got the box there--you want to put the machine Up 80 you can hear some of 'em?
Brown: You better shut that off, huh?

Russell: Yes, I'1l shut it off for a minute.
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(Record ZEClemenéine“ by Jean Goldketté? begins to play and during this time the conversation

continues) '

Brown: We made that record......we took stock orchestrations. We just run to the studio
quickly and cut off the introduction, P

Brown: We made up our own introduction, and our--our ending--the rest of it is just like the

notes are written., Except for a little improvision ZEmprovisatiqé?, see,

Allen: Well what happened after this record's made?

Brown: Huh?

Allen: What happéned after you made this recofd?

Brown: The band disbanded=-that is the last record that they made,

Russells

Brown: That's Bix /Beiderbecke/. Now, ah that's Joe Venuti playing violin, Now,in the choruse

when? slap the bass you'll nétice a difference, see, now it's a difference from the way they're

playin'\now, see, Seey, they just--they pick the bass and they don't let the strings hit, sce.

They juﬁt get the tone. I used to do that--I used to slap it to get a rhythmic affect qmmm=m

I think I'm bowing that, I'm not sure. That's Bix Belderbecke. He played a good trumpet.

Russell: Yeah, had a nice style.

Brown: And he's still 1 style, yet.

Allen: uh<huh

Brown: These records, these records don't sound corny-=you know,

Allen: No.

Brown: But we were ahead of the time with this orchestra, we were about-«l think we were

about four years ahead of time with our arrangements; we had the best arrangers in the country.

See this /Fill/ Challis went with Whiteman, too, 'Cause our records were outselling White=

man's, You knowy soon as the band broke up Whiteman reached in and grabbed all the boys he |

wanted, see. Yeah, that's ah ah an improvised eﬁding. (That particular record ends)-thatQE“ﬁi

had.

(Another record begins to play)

Allen: "My Pretty Girl™ /by Jean Goldketie/

Brown: Yeah, I heard thoge on this "Hi Fi", and, boy, that bass comes out loud as hell. You
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Brown: could hear it there, too. That's, that's SpiegelM Wilcox, he=<beautiful tone,
hasn't he? '
Allen: I knew that clarinet player--he's_ dead now.
Brown: Yeah,=e==---On, no, On this particular record? At the time we were supposed to record,
Don Murray took sick had a streptococcus throat énd while he was in the hotel Toom, Do.n Murray
wrote out all the parts he played--clarinet parts, and we gave that job to Don [Eorrect name,
Danny/ Polo,. | And he took his place on that particular record., And he I.Jlayed‘just like Don
 Murray, A lot of misicians think it was still Don Murray. You hear thatlslappin'? That's ah
different from the way a lot of them play, |
Allent: Good trombone bf'eak there.
Brown: That's sh---hear thatslappin', I used to think that was good.
Russell: It's still good.
Brown: Huh?
Allen: Stiil good.
Brown: Freddy ﬁﬁgﬂg Grofe wrote a number out you remember, "Slappin! The Bass",
(The second record ends and [T’rhaé?s Just My Way of Forgettihg Youi‘? begins),
Russell: Oh, yes,
Brown: TYou know it. He told me, he said Brown I'm gona write a number, "Slappin® the Bass",
end he wrote it, and I don't know what orchestrations, I don't guess he could
get the bass players to play it much, you know.
Allen: This is a little bit later,
Brown: That's not the Victor band, That must be the other Goldkette band, That fella cued
in there, see, there, everything was Goldkette at that particular time, and Goldkette had up
to 1925 he had all long-haired music. And then he had this here other band recording from
Chicago, .so this fella evidently got them mixed Upe

J ¢ Did they state on who it was from? Did they think it is from the Victor
band? _
Allen: Well, it says that this is a later band.
Brown: Yeah, that's, that's the WGN band, ‘i:hat's
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Allen: It says, vocal by Jean Napier--—thej don't know who's on this record,
BrownI: Not my playing., |

Rugsell: Ha, hay, not you, huh.

Brown: In the first place--his bass hasn't got the tone as mine's got. His,
énd he's tryin' to do the same as I did--and he's not, you know=-ah
Russell: Not gettin' it, huh?

Brown: And he's not gettin' it like I

Allen: Well half the stuff is wrong on the back of these covers anyway.
Brown: Wait, now | '

Allen: I wanta play it for you.

Brown: ‘luh?

K
Brown: I'm gettin' a copy that this fella made, and see if it's the same thing.

Brown: Well, I made that; sounds different to the other one...
Russell: That's "Proud of the Baby"?

Allen: That's "Clein;:.ine 'From New Orleans "isn't it?
Ryussell: "Clementine"?

Brown: Yeahy I think that's "Clementine",

Allen: This is still "Clementine, From New Orleans",

Brown: That's the same piece.

Allen: That's end of "Clementine", .
Brown: Now then you had that oh there., Now what's this one?
Allen: Let's see,

Brown: This is "My Pretty Girl's Stomp". We had that, too.
Russell: Okay. Let's turn it on the other side.

Allent I think we've got more on my record than on this one.==e=-=<CoMe One==-give.
Brown: Well, this is a home-made recording. Sees
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Allen: Yeah, ses.

Brown: A fella recorded this in Detroit for me.

Allen: This is "Proud".

Russell: Yeah, that's the Victor Band. Yeah, that's what they call 1it.

Allen: “I'm Gonna Meet My Sweetie Now",

Brown: Yeah

Allen: Let's play the original.

Brown: Let'!s see, now now play that last one. That last part, and see if you can get that other
number there, that I said wasn't one. Yeah,

Allen: Same tune. This is "My Pretty Girl" a different arrangement.

Brown: Yeah, they don't have that--they don't have that extra one. You say you're giving me more
than I got on there, huh?

Russell:" Yeah

Allen: He must have not given you the later ones, you know, that you're not on. Let me shut it
off,

Brown: But you're sure this is the same record, huh?

Allen: Yeah, it's the same. Now, let's see what's next, It should be "Gonna Meet My Sweetie Now",
Allen: This is "Proud", huh.

Allen: "Proud of a Baby Like You",

Russells

Allen: That's "Proud",

Allen: Let's, yeah--

Brown® Well, that's alright.

Allen: Let!s play my-my record and I think it will sound better.

Brown: uh-huh, I recorded that. I remember that. /starts "My Blackbirds Are Bluebirds Now']
Allen: This is a Goildkette, but I don't know if it's«--

Brown: Well,. there are a lot of numbers I don't remember to tell the truth. If they weren't as
good, I would get any of the records--I wouldn't take any of 'em.

Allen: But Idon't know if this is you or not.That!'s what we!re playing it fo:.
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Brown: No, that's not me. No, that's that's the--I'm sure that's the WGN band, that got
cued in there. That's how they sound, see, A lot of people take that for Bix,
Allen: I wonder who it was,

Brown: Ray Ludwig.

END OF REEL IV, April 22, 1958
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(music playing)

Brown: This is the type of bass. Well, I don't know whether it's the one, See, I joined
[Jean] Goldkette in 1926 = - - up to that time he had ah--long haired music, And ah that

. couldn't be the long haired music because that's more of a hot style so that's evidently the
WGN Band that they organized in Chicago. But I don't hear the accordion, You see v
huh,

Russell: What title was that? |

Allen: "My Blackbirds Are Bluebirds Now',

Brown: TYeah, is that the name of the piece "Blackbird and Bluebird"?

Allen: "My Blackbirds Are Bluebirds Now", it says.

Brown: "My Blackbirds are Bluebirds" |

Allen: I was wondering did any of the McKinney's men ever play with = - - -

Brown: That's true, now that ﬁay have been Goldkette's McKiﬁney's Cotton Pickers,
Allen: Did they mix it up?

Brown: They was under the direction of Goldkette,

Brown: Well, I don't know they ah in the plates in these whoevers in the recording laboratory
they may have picked it up just because it was Goldkette's, see everything was Goldkette's.in
those days. And Goldkette had different bands, that come in there,

Allen: Well, one thing I was wondering about was ah did they ever take a half McKinney's and
a half Victor band and mixed them up like that? You know put them together on a date, like
they have Prince Robinson on c¢larinet

Brown: On a record

Allen: From McKinney's and still have you on bass. Would they do that? -

Brown: They could have done thatg it's possible for 'em to have done that. But ah, ah outa
sheer ignorance of the party that was ah puttin'eemakin' up this special plate, see,

Allen: Yeah

Brown: They‘had_a plate for it. In those days they had a plate for each one of these records,
See?

‘Allen: No, what I mean is would they take ah say a coupla men from McKinney's Band and add

them to the band you were in.
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3rown: Ohe=no, no

\llen: They never did that?

drown: No, no, no, we never did augment, is that what ya! mean?
\1len: Yes, with McKinney;s men.

rown: Noy noe

-y

\llen: Well that's

jrown: They played separately, themselves, I think that's a jig band as it was,

tllen: Yeah, well that's what they say, you know, some people say that's true, but I'm glad
;0 get it straight. '

jrown: Yeah, I'm sure that's ah Goldkette's McKynney's Cotton Pickers. No? That was the
olored band, that ah

1len: uh=huh

'rown: Was under the supervision of Charlie Harveth [a druimer)., That was under Goldkette
nterprises, see? So evidently it had those that would go up to Ngw York and record. Now

'11 guess you?!l hear a lot of records, or maybe you have some that!s under the direction
f Stokese

1len: uh~huh
rown: Harold Stokes
llen: Yeah
rown: Well, that's the WGN Band, that's another Goldkettg band, after the Victor band was
isbanded.
llen: Here's one called "I'm Gonna Meet My Sweetie Now", Let's see if you recognize this,
ussell: Wait a minute, Yeah, that's right. Gonna be 78 |RPM]
(music begins)
rown: What are you doin? Recording that, too?
ussell: Yes, get this all on tape, Oh, ha ha. | )
1llen: Well, we want your comments, on who's soloing and all that.

rown: Oh, is that it.

nssell:

roWn: - I remember this record. We made that. Thatls Trumbauer,
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Brown: Bill Rank, (end of spool). This is Don Murray. This is Joe Venuti and Eddie Lang,
and I'm playin' _on the side of 'em,

Allen: I wonder who that clarinet player was?

Brown: It conlda been |another record bekins to play] Don lcor;ect.ly Danny] Poloo=---=gsee he
méde a session with use----he made several recordings while Don Murray was sick. That sounds
like his pla;inu??t'zﬁow this is a different version.

Allen: Different mastef. Called "My Pretty Girlnh,

Brown: Haven't heard them in a long time., (coughs) another record begins ("Proud"
title of tune) to play]. Well, I don't know, Sounds like that-;we made that one, too,

Allen: vuh-huh.

Brown: «---That?!s "Doc" Ryker playin' the lead sax there. =---=Ha's a legit man---good
musician-=just legit--straight lead. Now Don Murray was an improviser and also Trumbauver,
They, ah==w=ww

Allen: Were the Dorseys in here anywhere?

Brown: They=uh=no colored have never played with us.

Allen: Noy, I mean Jimmy and Tommy Dorsey?

Brown: Oh, you mean Dorseys

Allen: Yeah

Brown: I thought you said darkies.

Allen: No

Brown: Oh, naw, well, on some. In 1926 Jimmy Dorsey was in there, but I don't remember just
what records he made with us. Now, Tommy Dorsey wasn't with us. He played with the Goldkette
unit but in Detroit. In the Book-Cadillac Hotel, Played with Owen Bartlett, I think, at that
particular time, |

[New record begins to play, "I'm Looking Over a Four Leaf Clover"]

Brown: I think Chink Martin playing tuba [talk about record he is Iooking at]

Allen: uh<huh

Russell: In the New Orleans Rhythm Kjngs.
Brown: I can tell that this is the one because Husk O'Hare, he's the one who got could make
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Brown: the boys tc make the record.
Russell: The "Tiger Rag", you say, you're on the "Tiger Ray", on Gemnett
Brown: Oooohy I, I don't ., , » . |
-Rugsell: We'll play those in a minute, and see whaﬁ you think of them,
Brown: M"Tiger Ragh's I guess I was on there with Yem,
Allen: We'll play it, | '
Brown: l s but you can't hear bass,
Russell: No, you won't hear the bass, you'll remember the arramgements,
Brown: I can tell you the arrangement.
Russell: Which one? '
Brown: "Made A Monkey O,ta Me, "
Russell: Oh
Allen: We'll play that. (Brown 1augh§) You wanta hear that?
Brown: Hyh?
Allen: You wanta hear that?
Brown: I mean it never; never sold, but I mean it g -- it was, at that time when'they'were
taking the glands outa monkeys and givin' fem to men . o, ,
Allen: (laughs)
Brown: .eseya! remember?
Allen: Yeah,
Brown: TYou don't remember that?
Allen: I heard about it though, that doctor.
Brown: Well, some doétor discpvered by taking the gland out of the monkey, he could put it into
a ole! man and he'd jump around - - - (laughs) so they made this piece. Meyers, Meyers, an
entertainer in Friaris Inn Cafe, wrote this piecee o .
Allen: wuh<huh
( ah ‘ .
Brown: o o o and they published it ah and we recorded it for 'em, Ah, there's a 1ot of

singin'y I doubt (record begins)

Allen: I just took a guess, that maybe you were on this record.,
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Brown: Yeah, well I was on that record, and ah=-~~the thing that makes it sound like a bass
is sh---Georgie Brunis had a habit of ah playin' bass parts on a trombone ; whole lot, see,
and that's why you think you hear a bass on there.
Allen: Did ya ever hear the lyrics on that?
Brown: Those are pretty good. Yeah, I mean it was funny in those days, they could sing it
in the cafe. _

Allen: Wh;'s;the clarinet player?

Brown: -That was Volly DeFaut.

Allen: The cornet?

Brown: Naw, clarinet.

Allen: Who's the cornet player?

Brown: Oh, Paul Mares was the cotner. We had him playin' corn with that type of musie.
Allen: Well, is this the Rhythm Kings under another name?

Brown: Huh?

Allen: They call this the Original Memphis Melody Boys, 1 believe, I just wondered, if
this--who this, you know the

Brown: Oh, I know now what=--we did call ourselves the Memphis Melody Boys, but some of the
boys now I know I was mistaken,

Allen: Yeah,

Brown: I was thought it was the Friar's Inn band. It was part of the orchestra from the
Midway Gardgn Orchestra and we called ourselves the Memphis Melody Boys on that., We recorded
it also on the Brunswick. See? That's [Lew] Black playing the banjo on there, see
(1aughter)

Brown: Oh, that's funny if you hesr the lyrics. I can't hear it, I can't hear what they're
sayin', e=-=w--After he got the glandé in‘him, ya know, he crawls all over the chﬁndelier, and
jumps all around the place. Well, that was good in a Café. Let me look at that record again,
so Il can & o+ »

Allen: Yeah.

Brownt . o, o see thate I forgot. . .

\1len: Featuring Billy Meyers, the "Original Monkey Man",
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Brown: That's under the direction «- I don't remember recording this on the Gennett myself,
to tell the truth,

Allen: vuh-huh,

Brown: I remember recording it on the Brunswick.' (another record begins, other side
h"Wonderfhl Dream") emece, Naw, that's evidently Elmer Schoebel. Elmer Schoebel will have to
straighten ya out on that. .

Allen: Yes

Brown: I don't remember, === I recognize [Lew] Black, I think---I don't recognize the
trumpet player. I don't recognize the, the----I don't recognize the sh the trombone player,
either,

hllen: Say, did you ever know Murphy Steinberg?

Brown: TYes. Now, is he on is he supposed tobe on o o . ?

Allen: I don't knowe I'm not sure; they say that. . .

Brown: Well, Murphy Steinberg played with ah us--;-in the Mjdway Garden Orchestra.

Allen: Was he on this order?

Brown: Huh?

Allen: Did he play on this order of trumpet? That you heard?

Brown: A little--more of a hot style than a legitimate style.

Allen: What about a guy naméd- - - ‘

Brown: He epuld play legitimate because he was a good reader and good musician all around
musician--that is, he could play hot and he could play straight, too, if he wanted to.
Allen: What about a fella named "Wingy" that played clarinet?

Brown: "Wingy" Manonef;no, cornet,

Allen: No, / a clarinet player named "Wingy"s; there was suppose to have been another fella,
Brown: '"Wingy" Manone? |

Allen: No, just "Wingy"--that's all I know, that played clarinet. He's supposed to be in
this band, but I don't-know if he is. |

Brown: Wh&'£hey'd call him "Wingy"? Did he haﬁe one arm?

Allen: I don't know,

Prown: Did he have one arm?
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Allen: All I know is the name,
Brown: Well, I don't know who you're talkin' about., They'd—a lot of times, they'd put "Wingy'
to a fella's name if he was smoldng this marijuana, see.
Allen: Yeah,
Brown: Be flying all the time--"Wingy"--they put that name to.'em. But, now, who they're
referring to, I don't know, sh~ - -
Allen: What would you like to hear next?
Brown: Well, let's see ah.
Allen: Anything you wanta hear, we'll be glad to play.
Brown: This one here, under the direction of Husk O'Hare
Allen: A1l right,
Brownt . . « and this one here, I made.
Allen: uh-huh,
Brown: See. All those that were under the direction of Husk O'Hare on the Gennett I was on
with the Friar's Inn Band. But all those that are just on the Gennett theré, Just with New
Orleans Rhythm Kings, was evidently Chink ah Martin playin' ah ., . .
Allen: Well, we'll play 'em and check.
Brown: Just play a little of that, anyway don't go through all that., ["Panamg" N.O.R.K. music
begins]. That's Jack Pettis, Jack Pettis is on there. [Leon] Roppolo, Paul Mares, [Lew] Black
[Elmer] Schoebel played ah, Schoebel was playing piano, and I think ah ah ===-- a fella by the
name of [Frank] Snyder at that particular time playing drums.
Allen: Did he play before Ben Pollack or after Ben Pollack?
Brown: Before Ben Pollack.-—--Well, I made that one. Let's see has have they got the other
side now? What'!s on the other side?
Allen: "Tiger Rag"; 1let's mee now.
Brown: What!s on the other side?
"Tiger Rag',

Russell: That was "Panama',

Brown: "Penama", well, I made,that, yes. (record begins)------ yeah, I made that, that's

all right. Nowy~==—put, put this one on., This one here, I think, ah this Gennett
record, I think
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Brown: ah Chink Martin is ah, I think he's playin' that now-=plays on thats I think he played
"Milneberg [Joys"]. Now he plays tuba. (another record begins) ===--Too Slow for ite—--too
slow for that.

Rusgell: You think it should be faster a bit? .

%fown: Should be faster, _

Allen: There's a tuba there. I hear a tuba.

Brown: You hear the tuba---that's Chink ah~--that's Chink playing on that one, That's all
right. He's on this also; this one here---is formerly the Friar's Society Orchestra, see,
Allen: vuh-huh J

Russell: Yeah, "Tin Roof [Blues"] _

Brown: So this was "Tin Roof"; yeah, Chink Martin was on that

Russell: . We'll play a little bit of that.

Brown: And "That's A Plenty"---yeah, he's, ah he's on that one, too. So he made several
records after I left so he's on that one. (record begins)e--—e-==, Woll that's all right,
that enough---(Record stops) =---. Now--this one here is Tom, huh, Tom [Brown] and [Jobnny)
Bayersdorffer.

Russell: Yeah,

Allen: Yeah.

Brown: Ah, play that justa little bit, will ya--ah ah--they all sound more or less alike
after you get to hear 'em. (Record begins)4=-=emew- When ah, when did they make that recordin!
do ya know? )

Allen: In [March 17, 19] 2h---down here, it's su;posed to be; I'm not sure, I believe that's
right. They were playing out by the Spanish Fort, I think,

Brown: Now, now when was this recorded, can you tell me? [Speaking of another record] Does
the book tell y4! that? | |
Allen: December of "7, we'll play it and see if you're on it if you wanta hear it?

Brown: #Béuimsiuissf '27. Well, I musta been on it,

Allen: The very end.

Brown: What?

Allen: The very end of '27,

Brown: The end of "27-=-I don't remember it.
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Allen; We'll play it and see.

Brown: Oh, yes, that's Tom playin', Everybody's fightin' to be heard. That's the only
trouble that I can find with a--with a group---if they're not playin' by music, ever'bodylwants
to be heard, ya' know. They're afraid one will outdo the other, and they all keep blowin!
4harder and harder and before ya! knoﬁ it, you got-=-just a mess of notes together, (récord
ends) Yeah, ever'body=~no individual solo at all; ever'body wants to do his part. Now this
one here, "Here Comes the Showboat"--I don't ah remember the name--recognize the name, and I
eould, I could tell just by hearin' it.

Allen: All right,. -

Brown: Well

Allen: We told==you told us about Jean Goldkette breaking up. You ecould tel} by listening,
huh? [Record, "Here Comes the Showboat" begins] ~

Brown: Ah, ah, I got it., Git it?.

? : Yeaho

Brown: You say they got that down the latter parf of 192772
Allen: JYeah, December, =w=--- Does it sound like you?
Brown: That's not me, no; what's, what's confusing me, that sounds like Irish Henry on tuba.,
-~-And ah, the records, the records may be released at that time. But they may have been
recorded in 1925 , . .

Allen: Yeah .

Brown:..which I think it was. I think this was part of the first band that ah Goldkette had,
Sort of a long-haired effect, see---although that's "Bix" on there.=-I don'h know whether
that's Bix or not, that's sounds like--more like Ray Ludwig--sounds more like Ray Ludwig,
(recégd ends) & |

Allen: Wanta hear the other side?

Brown: Youlve ah heard ah Ray Ludwig's playing,'haven't you?

Allen: Yes,

Brown: Ah, he's ah, in St. Louis, and I think that's ah--hewas with the band in 1925, 192l
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Brown: Bill Rank was also in the band, five years before I joined it., And they made all types
of long-haired music; they went to New York and they flopped. And ah Goldkette revised the
orchestra and brought in sh ahOwell, I took Irish Henry's place, Ray Ludwig remained in the
band, Bill Rank remained in the band, and he made changes all around. Charlie Harvath used to
play drums in that band, was playin' in that band, was playing'on that particular record; and
we had‘Chauncay Morehouse to take his place on drums, and we had Frank Trumbauer to come in
there, and "Bix" at first of course we had Jimmy Dorsey for one season. Then Jimmy left and ﬁe
had Trumbauer to come in and take Jimmy's place. But ah, see, I don't recognize Jimmy, or I
don't recognize, Jimmy coulda been on there. But I don't---Trumbauer wasn't on there, and

I'm sure Bix wasn't on there; I'm surs that ah solo that I thought at first was "Bix", was

Ray Luydwig. And that's about what it was. I think that was recorded in the early--around
1925, and wasn't released until 1927 . «

Allen: I sece

Brown: o o o along with the other Goldkette at the time they were all moving,

Allen: Yes,

Brown: You see the idea of it at that pafticular time--it may have been a reject at that
particular timeo o o ,

Allen: uh-=huh

Brown: . « o and after the Goldkette records start moving real good, they figured--well here!s
our opportunity to shove this in and it will move along with the others, see. So, that's why
it's confusing to a lot of people who are trying to trace that up, But that's what it was,

was ah s o »

Allen: Would you like to hear the other side, or do you want to go on to something else?
Brown: Noy noy let’s go on to something else. That's about solved thate Now here's Johnny
Dedroit; I don't know anything about his band.
Allen® Well, all right,

Russell: Well, we'll go on and play another,

Brown: 4nd ah,

Allen: Let's see, we'vg played that, and played that,

Brown: I know he was a good trumpet player.
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Allen: And that's "Milneburg", we've played that.

Ryussell: How did you pronounce that, Milneburg, or Milenburg, or what?

Brown: Well, we used to say Milneburg here, up there they say Milenburg [due to misspelling],
Now up .
Brown's sister: The right pronunciation is Milneburg, isn't it?

Brown: Huh?

Brown's sister: The right pronunciation is Milneburg._

Brown: No, ah Milneburg.

Brown's sister: M~i~len-e-burgy-that's the way you spell it, pronounce--the right pronuncia-
tion is Milneburg.

Allen: Well, let's try anotherGoldkette.

Brown: Well, up there they call it Milenburg.

Russell: Yeah

Bro-in-law: I don't care how they pronounce ity I wish it was there. (laughter)

Brown: They call it Milenburg up there. They call it Milneburg down here. 'Doesn't matter, we
all know what you mean, but ah-e~you weren't down here when they had ah all those places out in
Milneburg, i ?

Russell: No, but I've seen pictures of ity though,

Brown: Oh, my God, the people used to had . o o

Brown's brother=in~laws v That was the best plsce in the
world,

Brown: It was, really-people really enjoyed them something in those days; how everything is.,.

END OF REEL V, Steve Brown, April 225 1958
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LRecord begins to play, "Sunday" by Jean Goldkette.]
lAllen:] Do you know that trombone player? Did yon hear him?
[Brovn:] That's Bill Rank.=-I'm bowin' the bass on that one. See, Hear
the bowin', the difference in the bowin'!? (singing oﬁ record begins)
[Allen:] That's the Keller Sisters and Lynch, |
LBrown:| What?
[Allen:] Keller Sisters and Lynch,singing,
Brown:] The Keller sisters, yeah.--Well, we had, we had the Bausdoufh [Boswell]
LConnie, Vet, Martha] Sisters, we had the Keller Sisters, and we had the Williams
sistei's on different recordings. |
[Allen:] What was the name of that first one, the Bausdoufh?
[Brown:] I thought that was the Bausdouph Sisters,
lAllen:] How do ya spell it?
|Brown:] Huh?
[Allen:] How do ya spell that?
|[Brown:] Bea-u-s-d-o-u-f-h I think. I think that's the way, anyway, they had
one crippled girl in there, they used to have to wheel her on the stage==you
| remember--one of 'em was paralyzed?
|[Russell:] I never saw 'em.
[Mrse Cooks] Boswells |
The .
L _G_opl::] Boswell Sisters.
|Brown:] What?
[Mrse Cook:] Boswell Sisters.
[Cook:] Boswell Sisters.
[Brown:] Huh?

[Mrs. Cook:] Boswell Sisters.
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|Russell:T Boswell Sisters.
[Allen:] Oh, Boswell,
[Brown:] I thought it was--
[Russell:] Yeah, Boswell.
[g_l.Lég:] Connie Boswell and Martha and Vet.'

|Russell:] Yeah, that's right

[Brown:] Boswell, then I made a mistake.

'[_(_)'g_o_k_:] B-¢c~s-w-e-1-1, yéah.;

[Brown:] Yeah, Boswell.

lAllen:] Connie, Vet, and Martha-eis that the one?

[Brown:] TYeah, I think that's ah . o &

|Another récord begins to play] |

lAllen:] Who played the clarinet? . ;

lBrown:] Don Murray.

[Ruésell:] She was at the Roosevelt a few months ago.

|Allen:] [|unintelligible]

|Russell:] 'feah . |

[Allen:] Nice break there.

|Brown:] Yeah, that's Don Murray.

lAllen:] He was a wonderful clarinet players

[M:] Yeah, that's good--good musicians there.

lAllen:] Would you want to hear "I'd Rather Be the Girl in Your Arms" |Vi 20273]7?
|Brown:] Ah,

[Allen:] Or you wanta play something else?

|Brown:] Now there's one thing I want youip play, ah here'-s, this has got me

puzzled here,



ﬁetypedz 69
STEVE BROWN |

Reel VI

April 22, 1958

|Allen:] Well, one side is Nat Shilkret.

|Brown:] On this side--well, no it's not Nat Shilkrest, Nat Shilkret--yeah,
that's right. "Me and My Shadow." This one here, "I'm Gona' Meet My Sweetie
Now"==yeah I made that one. But ah I heard that on the other record.
[Allen:] It's on the LP, too, yes, that's right.

|Brown:] Huh?

|Allen:] It's on the IP, too.

|Brown:] TYeah. |

[é;;gg:] And there's "I'd Rather Be the Girl in Your Arms,"

|Brown:] Yeah-~and "Sunday"--yeah,that's, that's mine, Now that's ah ., . .
lAllen:] ILet me put it on, this ah "I t'd Rather Be the Girl in Your Arms,"
|Record begins to play.)

[ggégg:} Yeah, I remember that. S

[Allen:] Who's the guitar player on it?

|Brown:] Lang, Eddie Lang--he's dead now, I'm bowin' that oné. (whistling)
Any piece that wasn't hot, I'd use a bow. (ha, ha) Now I use the bow later
on.==good guitar player Lang was. Joe Venuti wasn't on the slouch; he was a
clowny there's a lot of interesting stories can be told about Joe Venuti, I
guess you heard some of %em, huh?

|Russell:] |Unintelligible.]

|Brovn:] Haven't ya? About directing an orchestra in the Biltmore Hotel in
New York? |

|Allen:] What'd he do?

| Brown: ] (laughs) Well, I'11 tell yﬁ' that later. (laughs) That's not for

print. (laughs)
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[Russe;i.l:j I've heard of it |[unintelligible], but I've heard some of it,
[Brown:] I found out I was on the 'air,' (laughs) I was recording., I didn't
want to say anything because I--[Singing on the record begins,] (whistli;lg)--
Now after ya'! get all this data collected and@ over and boil 'em down and ah
you'll about come to the real references that a person should Vaocep‘b. Is that
it?

t%z] That's what we hope.

Browns]- That's the way it should be, =-Because after all, it's so confusing
for a student to go into a library now and get these books.

[Allens] Yeah,

|Brown:] There's so many books, every.one of 'em ah ah contradict each other
in a way, you know what I mean. So ah all of this will have to be brought
together and ah each individual will have to be brought out as far as you can,
you knowy, to o . »

[Russell:] One thing I'd like to talk about is the music from the red light
districte You said that really wasn't typical.

[Brom:] To me, no, that's completely out, that's wrong. But the majority of
writers, they, they put--that's the easiest way to write about ity see.
[Russell:] That everything came from the district?

{Brown:] That's right. But it isn't so; the music down there was entirely
different.

[Russell:] What kind of music did they have in the district?

| Brown: ] Ba;'re; house and ah as I call it bump music, and ah, arid they~=the
slow drag music, we never played no sloﬁ drags and things like that, seé.

|Russell:] What were the slow drags?
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lBrown:] Slow dragh? Well, it was a regular L/l piece, and ah, ah, real slow,
with a lot of bumps in it and ah . . .
[Russell:] Would they be blues sometime?
|Brown:] Huh?

|Russell:] Would they be blues?
[Brown:] In the form of blues, yes. Now we couldn't play in that type of

slow tempoj ail our tempos were lively. And itiwas entirely different, And

we couldn't ah--anyway, it'wasn;t the same type of muéic that Tom brought up

to Chicagoy, ah ah named "jazz." And that's what everybody is--and called jazz—-
that was what everyone is interested in, see?

|[Russells] Uh-huh,

lBrown:] And well they-~the story of the reflection of that part, you know, I
mean what they call it, the way Tom considered it, ah couldn't be ah classed as
ah music that was comin' directly from thefe.

lRussell:] Yeah, ;

[ggégg;] Ya' see? Now Tom-~the type of music we played down there, we could
never get a job 1nlany of the placés down in the tenderloin district and play.
Because our music would be too fast, too lively,

|Russell:] Yeah,

|Brown:] See?

[Allen:] What was barrel house?

LBrown:] Huh?

lAllen:] What was barrel house music?

[Brown:] Oh, barrel house, that's kinda hard to explain--it's a a type of piano,
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ah show, more ‘of the blues type, ya know, and ah + o o »

Cook: Everything was dragged out.

Brown: It was dragged out, more or less, in those days, And, in féct, they
none of them had any what you'd call Dixieland combinations 3 ah some of the
places could only afford to have arc;und two musicians--maybe a piano and drums,
And ah the larger pl#ces maybe they'd have six, seven men f.o ‘em, but they'd
never piay the same type of music that we did, for daﬁcing. And they never
played rﬁazoolw.s Imarzurkas], or schottische or walls, or waltzes, or reels, and
- things like that there, see? -

Allen: But they didn't-—--

Russell:

- Brown: It was all slow drag, bucket shop, ah barrel house, and bumpy msic

and things like that to put the band in ah--to put the people in a good humor.
Russell: Did you ever . IR

Brown: Give them timé to get around the floor; they wasn't in any hurry in
those days, see? Yeah, here's your friend,

‘ Mrs, Cook: Comeé in, |Ralph Collins enters]

Allen: ﬁi-dey.

Brown: Come one.

Russell: We'll be ready in a minute,

Brown: He's driving? Is that your chauffeur?

Russell: Yeah, Vwe'll be leaving in a minute, I know it's your dinner time,
Brown: Take the rocking chair,

Collins: Hah, hah-;-all right,

Russell: I know it's your dinner time, and we don't want to keep much longer.

Browvn: Well ¢ o « »
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Russell: Did your band ever play any jobs at all in the district, in any

of the dance halls any time? |

Brown: Noy, not in the--oh no, never in the district. |Compare Johnny Lala
interview) As I told you before, our music, our music, our type of music
wouldn't be acceptablé there. It wouldn't, ah it wouldn?t ah fit in with that
type of

Russell: Yeah

Brown: But yet the writers would have, try to have people believe thaf. that
type of music, jazz music, originated-=there it didn"é. It was entirely
different music than ours. |

Allen: What did they play at Tth & Magazine?

Mr, Cook: Played jazz at Tth and Magazine,

Brown: We played--we played what we called ragtime at that time, See, it was

the same type of music that Tom played at 7th and Magazine==he played in Ghicagd.
Mr, Allen: Uh-huh, | '
Brown: That was named jazz, then, after it got up there. But béfore that, the
people in New Orleans as itself--we never knew anything about jazz; we never
thought of calling it jJazz. But after they got up there, they called it Jazz.
Allen: Now ah Mr. Cook, you mentioned some good bands at ah 7th and Magazine,
Mr. Cook: Naw, the only two I sald was, that they had in the city was Blessing
and Browm, |
Allen: Blessing?
. Brown: Don't you remember |Jchnny) Fischer's Band?

Mr. Cook: Fischer, jreah.

Brown: You remember him--he had a good orchestra, too. I don't remember so
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Allen: Who was Blessing?

Brown: A Blessing? Ah, ah, ah, that was Blessey's band, wasn't it?

Cook: v Blessey,

Brown: Ah, ah, sh, Blessey band, he played trumpet.

Allen: U}}-huh.

Brown: And ah, I don't know much about his band at all.,

Cook: He was from the downtown section,

Allen: Oh. Well, we'll have to look up on Blessey.

Brown: I don't think ybu'll find anyone in his band iivin' yety, huh?

Cook: Not hardly.

Brown: Cause I don't know--he's « o . .

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brown: The only ones that I remember is, that ah really were considered good
was Fischer's band and and my brother's band, Ah, and we did ify I'm not
bragging, but we did have one of the best bands down here. And ah that's why-- |
when Tom went up there and was so successful, the people were all waiting a
block or so to gain admittance. Other cafe owners, they were losing business
so fast that they told the.union, say, "Sa,}, you have to do something about i
that," he says, "We losing business." And the fella says, "Well the only
thing I can tell you to do is to go .dm»m to New Orleans and try to get a band
similar to the one that Brown's got and try to compete." So they dide. They
come down and picked up any band that said they had a band similar to Tom'g
band. And so everything centers around Tom in that particular area. Now
Gussie Mueller, he pléyed with different orchestras, And also, Ray Lopez. And

by the way, ‘before you leave, I'11 ah try to give you the address of o o o &
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Allen: Didn't you have some sh piano rolls or something you wanted to ask
about? -
Russell: I was gonna ask a little bit ébOut--if you remember any of the other
bands that Tom played with, like Ray Mil].er--uh-—and. do you know anything about
his activity with Ray Miller, for instance? | |
. Brown: Yes, he was playing ah, ah-=he played with what they called the Memphis
Melody Boys. Ray Miller had the Memphis Melody Boys in Ed Wynn's production
show, I caught the show when I was in Chicago and ah Tom was ah-=the whole band

was perched upon pedestals, ﬁay up high in the scenery of the show; it was
quite a large show. And ah that was in 1920 that I heard Tom in that particuiar
band. And he went back to New York with em, and later on he comé'back to
Chicago'. Antl. he played with Bert Kelly gﬁite a lot; Bert Kelly's Stables was
© well known all over Chicagoe
Russell: He played at Bert Kelly's, huh?
Brown: TYeah; Bert Kelly's Stables,
Russell: TYes, I remember that.
Brovm: The ahe-he had a sort of a, an affair; he had his café built like a,
1like a horse barn, with stals in ite-with harness and hay and ;verything ‘else.
And he'd tell the people as they came in in their full dress suits and tuxedos
and everything, "There's your stall; get into 1t." You know, (laughs) And
they-=it was really funny; they had hay all over and old pieces of harnesses
and decorated the place and--quite an outfit, And the "Four Hundred" class
got quite a kick out of it, you know. And he made quite a lot of money, so
they could have shows, entertainment and things--Tom played there. And I, at

one time, played with Tom's band, in Chicago, just for a little while. Would
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you like to see the picture of us?

Russell: Yeah, we would like to see it after awhile.

Allen: Yéah, very much. |

Brown: I think this is something I----for some information I took out of some
of the books sometime. Iike Jelly Roll, Jelly Roll Mgrton,

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brown: Well, he happened to be in Chicago--was ah, he was 2- in ah Chicago
in 1905; he was born in 1885 in New Oyleans--died in 1941, I guess you got
something about this fella. — o
Russell: Do you remember him, ah?

Allen: Do you remember him?

Browm: TYesy, I remember going there and hearing him play; played a lot of
pianoy, and he used to play singely, mostly, Sometimes he would play with a
little band, but most--a great many of them had violins s and as I said at
first, It was a different type of music entirely,

Russell: Yeah,

Cook: Couldn't be i{ color,

Allen: Did you hear him down here? .

Brown: No, I didn't hear him down here, but up there I did. Ahy now then I
read', the originé.td.on of "jazz." I triéd to get it frbm the library; of
course they have no records of any word like that before 1915,

Russell: Yeah,

Brown: And then the origination of the word "jazz"--now as a gréat many
writers put it, and all this talk about the ah ah the word "jazgh being to
discredit the orchestra and evefything else~-course I'm sorry I'11 have to
differ with Tom in that respect--wasn't meant that at all, It was taken,

from a French word, ah !jaser'--'jasen' to pep up, to accelerate, see; that's

Y
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a French word. And, it evidently, it could have been some French "person that
used that particular expréssion and did g’ive it the name of "jazz"e=j-a=double
s==at first; then later on it was spelled J-a=double z, Louie Armstrong was
born July L=~ I just wrote this down, lotta times--

Allen: Yes, go ahead. _

Brown: And he joined King Oliver's band at Lincoln Gardens Café in July,
1922 in Ghicago. So, that's the time he came up there; :

Russell: TYeah, much later than Tom.

Brown: See, that's much later. Ah, Joseph "King" Oliver was borf in 1885 on
Dryades Street, New Orleans--I guess you saw that in the book.

Russell: Yeah,

Brown: Well, I copied a lot of things that I read out of the book in here.
Allen: Sure, |

~Brown: In notation. I thought maybe I'd read some of these.===e==- Did you
ever read Charles Delalu)ney's book? | '
Allen: Uh-huh, |

Brown: Columbla"Sixty~Four |Thousand] Dollar" Jazz Album?

Russell: Oh, some of the . . «

Brown: The "Sixty-Four Dollar" Jazz Album,

Allen: Oh, yes, uh-huh.

Russell: Yes, I've seen some of that.

Brown: And then ah--oh, I guess that was from the show, "Sixty-four Thousand
Dollar |Question]. |

Russell: Television..

Allen: Yes, that's an LP, a record,

Brown: Ah--Maxine (Maxi Me?) Skelton--did you read his article?



STEVE BEROVIN: |

Reel VI: retyped , , 78
April 22, 1958

Allen: Noy, I don't remember that.

Brown: He mentions Tom Brown on page five. Puts Kelly with Dixieland band,
(Laughs)

Allen: Kelly?

£

Brown: And [Nick] LaRocca has--well there is a lot of them that has got every-
thing mixed up in the |
Allen: Yeah,

Brown: o o . writings, ya' know.

Russell: Yeah,

Ailen: Well, it's good for you to correct it,

‘Brown: And as I went along--well, that's what I had in mind when I wrote to
the University, so if there was any questions that they wanted to é.sk me
regarding different ones like that . o »

Allen: Uh-huh, _ _
Brown: Why I==accordin' to what the books lstat-e, or what t.hey'ré trying to
accepty I could tell 'em as much as I know about it, because I, I should
remember what was ah going on. Now there's Jazzways, volume number 1 by Robi,
ah Rogentnall.

Allen$ Yes, wo—— |
Brown: Did you read that?

Russell: We have that, yes.

\
Brown: TYou have that? And Frontiers of Jazz?

Russell: TYes, , ,
Allen: Do you have any corrections you wanta make on those?
Brown: Well, there are a lot ‘'of thingsj I'd have to look over the book again,

in order to ah o &« o
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: -would
Allen: Ch,; yesh--wall, anytime you,\want to write us about that, we'd appreciate

it,

I
Brown: Well, ah,.intend to, when I write this book + .
Russell: When you write your other material, that would be good.
Brgwn: I intend to bring in, mention different books o o .
Allen: Uh-hu.ho
Brown: o « o and state what I ah, what I know to be wrong,
Allen: Uh<huh,

i
with whoever wants to believe it, ya know,

Brown: You knowwhat I mean--to give my version of it anyway; now the hell

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brc:wnt I mean, I'm going to give my version of it,

Russell: ‘/Get it down right.

Brown: Because after all, these fellas wrote, and they gaxlre £heir'§ersion of
it--so why not me?

Russell: Sure; you have==--

Brown: I was born, way, hell, before they wasy; so I should Ln';ow a iittle MOYgee
in that respect. Only thing I'm-—and I got all th#t "I Hear You Talkin! To
Yay" "Ohy, Hear Ya Talkin' To Ya'! |"Hear Me Talkin' To Ya"?]

Russell: Oh, yeah,

Brown: That's the story of jazz by the., WNow, who put that, all those stories
in therey did you?

Russell: No, no, no, some fella in New York--some eritic up there,

Brown: Well, he ’seaﬂed to have gone all over and interviewed different musicians,
Russell: Yés, a lot of that he got out of Down Beat; a lot of those interviews
came out of Downbeat--were published years ago. .

Brownt They did?

Russell: The others were made in New York,



STEVE BROWN | - 80

Reel VI, Retyped

April 22, 1958

Allen: He interviewea 50M@ o o o

Brown: Well, I noticed he interviewed different musicians and talked,

Russell: Yeah,

Brown: Well, he's never interviewed me and ah and I doﬁ't guess he stopped

in Detroit.

Russell & Allen: No, no. -

Brown: But ah he ah |Arnold] Loyacano, he talked to Loyacano, and ah Johmny
Stein. Now Johnny Stein was another drum=---he was a drummer in New Orléans.
Russell: Yeah, v ° -

Browvn: He was looked up to as guite a good drummer in those olden dﬁys. And ah,
there was another‘drummer by the name of Stevenson=--not "Ragbaby" Stevenson
|Stevens], bﬁt another Stevenson; I can't think of his first name'/ was quite
a find drummer, too. Ah, they all played ragt----now ﬁera--this fella, Rydi
Blesh, had quite a lot of good ideas, He said they all played rag@ime, which
is true; it was all ragtime, but--before it was ah called jazz. SO it is
still the same type of muslic, only called jazz. Now they're changing it around
to progressive jazz, jazz and swing and what have ya--ya know,

Russell: TYes,

Brown: Ah-<Oh yeah, there's one fella claimed that he ah, when he visited New
Orleans, he went down on Bienville Street and met someone playing piano ya know,
and it's quite a story in there. And ah, he, he ialks about & lot of colored
musiclans, too. I, I wrote all these down, so later on when I get ahold of
these books again, I can ah, ah look over each one of them separately then ah
comment on different énes,‘ya know, ment;pn the names, see, in the book,
Russell: Comment. : i

Brown: Now the History of Jazz in America, did you read that?
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Russell: No; I don't think so.

Brown: You didn't read it. ‘

Allen: Is that Ulanov? Who is that, Ulanov?
Russell: Ohy no, I don't kno% anything aboute—we-
Brown: Yes, Barry Ulanov,

Allen: Uh-huh,

. Russell: Oh, yeah I saw that.

Brown: ﬁe's not so much. He (laughter). He gives you his Vviewpoint, but he's
all screwed up in a way. Did you ever read it? ‘

Allen: Yeah, I read it.

Rrown: Huh?

Allen: TYeah, I read it.

Russell: He's written two or three books, too.

Browm: Yeah, oh, yeah, he's got several books there. But boy, ‘he's all wet

on a lot of things, I forget now just what it was, |

Allen: Uh-huh. > j.
Brown: New York was ah--let's see, what was that--New York was s sad £;;;ten;h
or twentieth-—oh yeah, it, he tells about New York, New York which was truge=.
~New York was very slow on accepting Jazz; not 1like Chicago., New York was very
slow, so that's the reason Tom had such & terrible time when he went to New York,:
Allen: I wanted to ask you about some of those bands he played with in New

York, did he play with Yerkes', or something like that?

Brown: Yerkes?

Allen: TYerkes. _

Brown: Yerkes Band, yeah; he blayed with Yerkes, "Hear Me Tallkin! To You,
Rineharéézga Company, Incorporated, New York; do you know, did you hear, did

you read that?
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Allen: Yes, )

Brown: And ah, Arnold Loyacano has a.i‘ull story on page eighty-one.
Allen: Uh<huh,

Brown: I got down there "most all lies," (1aughter). There's another one
about Johnny Stein, read Johnny Stein's, page thirty-two, eighty-thres,
eighty=four, vNow/ that's "Hear Me Té.lkin' To You," yet,

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brown: I got a little notations--I got, Shining Trumpets.,

Allen: Uh-huh. '

Brown: Did you read that?

Allen: Yeah,

Russell: Yeah,'

Brown: And ah, there's a lot of 'em; are really nice, and they are nicely

written up and ah and ah they just go out of a dream world, boy. Some fella |

. writes a book and he stays down in the Tenderloin district from the beginning

to the end,

Russell: Uh-huh.

Brown: Ya know what I mean? And if an ordinary person reading the book, their
conception--*well, Jesus Christ, Brown's band musta come right from a whore house,
and was-=" (laughs). And we never did play around there; and our music
wouldn®t have been, as I told you before it wouldn't have been acceptable for
any'type. You know the type of music they played down‘ there, in comparison

to the type of music we played up here, so you couldn't consider that; and yet

“these writers would have the people believe that they did.

Cook: They shouldn't, 'I hung around Tom Anderson's enough,
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Brown: My God, I used to go down thers. I guess that's before your days,
isn't it? | |

Russell: Yeah, oh yeah, that's right.

Brown: Let's see, what time did they break up that red light district? )
Cook: They broke it up around, around [19] 34 or '35,

Brown: They used to have the "House of All Nationa," you see; you go in there,
and, you'd well pay so much, and you were fed; you take your timﬁ, ya
know, it may take days, but you go all around (Ruésell laughs). Go around to
every nationality in the world, ya know; you go,arouﬁd--they-had a great big
hallway there, rooms, rooms, rcoms, ya know ali around, and here's Japan, China=-
oh, Christ, you gotta go through it, that is if you wanta go through it; you
cén drop out if you want, tut you pay ybur money and-=you recbrding this?
(ﬁussell laughs) .

Russell: Oh, that's all right. Nobody there's nothin' in there (Allen laughs)
it doesn't make any difference.

Brown: 'Wbll,‘that wasn't music,

Allen: No, bub=-

Brown: Well, anyway, in those particular days, why, they had a type of music
entirely different from what we played; and it couldn't be classed as that
type of music,

Russell: No=-=I see what you mean--couldntt,

Brown: And ah I'm only sorry that there isn't any recordings; wetdidn't have
any recordings in those days, nothing to regord by;, otherwise youfd see what I
mean. |

Russell: Yeah

Brown: You know, there is some musicians that can sh--some ole! piano players
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that ban ah, some of these old colored piano players that you ah contact,
they?11 play the barrellhouse music o o . -

Allen: Uh-huh _
| Brown: . o » for you, and they'll play all that typé of music they used to
play down there, and you'd be surprised, it, it can't be classified as the same
as ¢ o o |
Russell & Allen: Yeah,
Brown: . . . the type we played,
Allen: Are there any other records that youlve made-that you wanted to mention
as outstanding, for people to hear?
Brown: Well, it don't me, don't do me any good; I got paid for the, I got
paid for the side.
Allen: Noy no, yeah, I know, but I just thought Yyou might want peopie to hear
them,
Brown: I do know that there are a lot of record collectors that are after the-
records, |
Allen: Yes,
Brown: They've wrote me and asked me if I ever know when they're gona release
some more of them, and they'd like to get some, Itve had different musicians
from Australia, some from England and France, they wanted to get ah other
copies of it, and asked me if there is any releases comin', oh, I don't know
anything about it,
Allen: No, they---
Brown: In fact, it &oesn't mean ahything_to me. It's no mﬁney-in my pocket,
and I told them I don't know just when they'll release 'ems But they do--ever

now and then, they'll come out with a group-of numbers of different bands, you
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know, like they did with tnis Goldkette unit. Now they sold out of all of
these; in fact I can't buy any; I've been looﬁn' for some, and I, I certainlj
appreciate you giving me. By the way, where is it7?

Allen: Here it is. (laughs) There, it is right the;e.

Russell: One question here, about some of Tom's pieces_-do you remember some

of his titles, pieces that he wrote; or?

Brown: Yes, he had some numbers he published; and ah, ah I don't know, he
didn't have them in thé hands of the right people, they wasn't plugged muchj

the only one that plugged it was him, himself, I did_n't, I, myself, I didn't
think much of them; I didn't think that they had any good commercial value to
themy so=-=but let him have his fun, you know--there is a 1ot of people that
write numbers, you know what I mean, and it doesn't mean anything, But he did
have some numbers, wrote some numbers, and had them published,

Russell: Remember the number "June"?

Brown: "June;" yes.

Russell: That's one of .his.

Brown: And he had somethin' to do with ah ah oh--it was a Spanish number.
Russell: "Rose of Spain." |Words by Fred Fisher, muéic by Tom Brown, Billy
Fraziol, and Roy Miller, | |

Brown: "Rose of Spain," yeah.

Russell: We have a pilano roll of tha;t,, and "Love Dreams.”

Brown: Yeah, he had some--did he_ have ah, did he put that on rolls, "Love Dreams?®
Russell: Yeah, . . . |

Brown: Yeah, | |

Allen: And the Halfway House [orchestra] recorded "Love Dreams," too, I believe.
Russell: Do youremembér a piece "Our Bungalow of Dreams?®

Brown: "Bungalow of Dreams?" Yes, I remember that,
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by
Russell: Was that his, do you think? It waspa Brown, but it had the 'e! on

the end of it,

Brown: Yeah, well--ah, it seems like I heard Tom speak of that, but now
whether that's his or not I couldn't say; I'd never Seen the music to it or
anything, but I've:heard Tom speak of it.

Allen: 1It's Lew Browme, maybe,

Russell: Mjght have been.

Brown: There's another Brown with 'e! on it, that means he's Irish, and sh
we're Englishy, so it's Ber-o-w-n, see, -

Rusgell: Yeah, ‘

Brown: And ah, if you put 'e! on it, it's Irish. But ah, I heard Tom speak
about that, now whether he wrote it, I don't think he did.,

Russell: Ngo

Allen: Where do you think hot music originated?

Brown: Hot Music? |

Allen: Or ragtime, or whatever ya wanta--

Brown: All down in this particular section of the country,

Allen: And what does that include; does that include any particular states,
or only one, or what? '

Brown: Ah, more so down in New Orleans, It was all through the plantations
and things like that. '

Allen: Uh-huh,

Brown: The ol'! Negroes out there--I used to, man:;r time, when I was a kKid, go
along the river and these Negrﬂﬁoustabouts Would be sitting out on the cotton
bales waiting for the boats, and théy'.d be singing, And théy'd hmmoniﬁe S0

beautifully, you know what I mean--ok, you've never heard anything like it in
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your life; I'd just sit around there and listen at them for hours. And
they'd just sing until the boat would begin to come to be loadedyand they'd
have to go to work then. But I'd sit around s and some of them would bring
their instruments; and some of them would have & banjo or something, some of
them would have a trumpet, an ole' battered up trumpet , and they'd play their
tune, somey, some popular number,. ah like they'd think it should be Iﬂayed, ya

know--improvising and playing ah, playin' it in their way, their style. And ah--
like I heard a Negro one time in ah, in one of the churches, playing ah an organ.
Well, ipstead of playing the organ like you would ordinarily play, he'd, make a
lot of arpeggio notes, ya know--on the basses. And he had a rhytﬁm going of

his own; it sounded just like an orchestra in those days, see,

Allen: Uh-huh.,

- Brown: And ah, that's his way of playing. But I think hot music originally started
right down here in New Orleans, and it all drifted in here frorﬁ the plantations, you
know.

Russell: Yeah,

Brown: You could find it, like in Baton Rouge, all that center, you'd find music comin'
in through there, and in New Orleans the same way; we'd all get ideas from all
around that section, And then, for harmony, we used to love to pass by these

Negro churches and hear 'em sing, And their harmony--we used to love to hear how--
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